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Chairman Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Allan International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s sales turnover
decreased by 15.3% to HK$1,325.1 million (2016: HK$1,565.3
million). Business environment remained extremely difficult and
competitive across all markets. Sales turnover to Europe suffered
most significantly. Political uncertainty arising from the results of the
Brexit referendum in the United Kingdom and the depreciation of
the Pound Sterling and Euro has led to weakened demand in the
European market.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, gross profit margin improved
from 12.1% to 14.5% due to change in product mix, depreciation
in Renminbi and productivity gains through manpower streamlining,
automation and process improvements. The consolidated net profit
decreased by 46.2% to HK$72.9 million (2016: HK$135.7 million).
The significant decrease was mainly attributable to the one-off gain
of HK$110.8 million on sale of a property in the year ended 31
March 2016. Basic earnings per share of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017 was HK21.7 cents (2016: HK40.4 cents).

The Board of Directors has resolved to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting the payment of a final dividend
of HK10.5 cents (2016: final dividend of HK5.5 cents and a special
dividend of HK28.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March
2017. Together with the interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per share
paid in January this year, the total dividend for the year ended 31
March 2017 will be HK12.5 cents per share (2016: HK35.0 cents).
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Chairman Statement

Looking ahead, we will continue to stay vigilant and versatile in
our manufacturing capacity and resources planning in response to
fluctuations in market demands. We will stay focused in stringent
cost and expense control, productivity efficiency improvements,
persistence in quality products and engineering and R&D
capabilities. We are fully aware of the uncertainties and challenges
lying ahead. With our prudent and pragmatic business approach,
financial strength and commitment to excel, we will strive on and
tread cautiously to ride through the current and coming difficulties
and challenges.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our heartfelt gratitude
to Mr. Cheung Lun, the founder and Honorary Chairman of the
Group, for his vision and business insights upon which the solid
foundation for the Group has been laid. We would continue to seek
his invaluable guidance in business development and strategies. |
would also like to welcome Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William to the
Board of Directors. Dr. Cheung’s extensive technical experience,
knowledge and insights in research and development and project
management would no doubt lead us to more innovative platforms.
Last but not the least, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their continual contribution and support
throughout the year.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Chairman

Hong Kong

29 June 2017
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Financial Highlights

MBRREE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLEFE

2017 2016 Change
—E—+F —E-RE o
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FET
Revenue B 1,325,082 1,565,325 -15.3%
Gross Profit EA 191,537 188,633 +1.5%
Gross Profit % R 14.5% 12.1%
Net Profit 4 Fl) 72,947 135,656 -46.2%
Net Profit% fo R 2 5.5% 8.7%
HK cents HK cents %
Earnings Per Share B & A 21.7 40.4 -46.3%
Dividend Per Share — Interim A B — 2 1.5
Dividend Per Share - Final TR B — R 10.5 5.5
Dividend Per Share — Special FREE A - 28
Dividend Per Share — Total Bk E— 4% 12.5 35 -64.3%
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2017 2016 Change
Notes —E—+tF —T—RF &
B it Day Day
x x
Inventory Turnover Days FEEEXE 1 26 24 +2
Trade Receivables and Bills RN E SRR K
Receivable Turnover Days JEWZE B FERE 2 70 70 -
Trade Payables Turnover Days JENESEFREAERE 3 61 53 +8
Gearing Ratio EEBEREX 4 4.2% 4.9% -0.7%
Return on Equity 1% R 48 2 [0 3 K 5 6.4% 12.1% -5.7%

Notes:

*7. Inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the opening and
closing inventory divided by the cost of sales and multiplied by the

number of days for the year

*2. Trade receivables and bills receivable turnover days is equal to trade
receivables and bills receivable divided by the revenue and multiplied

by the number of days for the year

*3. Trade Payable turnover days is equal to trade payables divided by
the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days for the year
4, Gearing ratio is equal to the total borrowings divided by the equity

*5. Return on Equity is equal to the net profit for the year divided by the
average of opening and closing equity
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged in manufacturing of a wide range of
household electrical appliances.

Business environment for the year ended 31 March 2017 continued
to be difficult and challenging. Sales turnover dropped across all
markets with weak demands. The impact of the Brexit referendum
result in the United Kingdom and the depreciation of the Pound
Sterling and Euro had affected the sales turnover of the European
market adversely.

During the year under review, sales turnover decreased by 15.3%
to HK$1,325.1 million. Sales turnover to Europe decreased by
19.3% to HK$655.3 million representing 49.5% of the Group’s
sales turnover. Sales turnover to Asia decreased by 15.8% to
HK$332.6 million representing 25.1% of the Group’s sales turnover.
Sales turnover to America decreased by 3.1% to HK$301.6 million
representing 22.8% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to
other markets decreased by 24.2% to HK$35.5 million representing
2.6% of the Group’s sales turnover.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 increased by 1.5%
to HK$191.5 million. Gross profit margin increased from 12.1%
to 14.5%. The improvement in gross profit margin was mainly
attributed to the change in product mix, depreciation in Renminbi
and productivity gains through manpower streamlining, automation
and process improvements.

The Group continued to apply stringent control on all costs and
expenses. Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 18.1%
to HK$24.7 million. As a percentage to sales turnover, selling
and distribution expenses maintained at 1.9% for both years.
Administration expenses decreased by 9.0% to HK$117.8 million.
As a percentage to sales turnover, administration expenses
increased from 8.3% to 8.9% compared to last year.

Annual Report 2016/2017 —E—XREZ=

BB WD T

£ Aa
AEBUFRESHRETE
BE-T—tFZ A=+ —BILFHEN—

FERRBEDABIER LG AKE M
EEEAEIF%LA@ZWT%W%E’J SN

REREEBEN A RERERBOZER
RENMRTHRERSBEMNTHEHELRE
RRMARIEE -

REREFE HELERE NKI15.3%E13E
25108 BT BUMIHE & X8 T %K19.3%
E6E5,5308 B L AR SEBEELERE
49.5% o Tp M IHE & X5 T K15.8% X318
3,260 BT (AN KB E L H£525.1% ©

EMBEEEEBETHUIA%EIIE1608 B
TR ARE B E S ¥ F22.8% c Kb 5
HE LR T B24.2% 23,5508 87T 6K
FEHE L ETH2.6% °

BHE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HLEFEZE
R HN1.5%E1189,1508 B L EFM KK
121%RFAE145% - EFIR T HEETER
MREREEEL AREREREBEE
AN BEERIFHSERIEEN -

RNEBEBEMBKRARFESZEEERED
=l o SHE RO RN 18.1%E2,4708
B oHERDHAGHEEEE 2D
Lt 58 PR A 4 35 1E1.9% K F » 17 BRSO
9.0%E1181,7808 BT - (TR (HIHE L
¥ ADHALEF 8.3%EINES.9% ©

— R

7



Management Discussion and Analysis

On 13 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to disposal of a property,
namely, all that 12th floor of Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King’s
Road, Hong Kong at a cash consideration of HK$179.0 million.
In addition, pursuant to the agreement, upon completion of the
transaction, the Group continues to occupy the property by entering
into a tenancy agreement with the Purchaser in respect of the
Property for three years commencing from the date of completion, 3
March 2016. This sale and leaseback arrangement resulted in a gain
of HK$110.8 million and a deferred income of HK$56.2 million at
31 March 2016. Amortization of deferred income arising thereof for
the year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$19.3 million (2016: HK1.6
million).

The investment property located in Wanchai, Hong Kong was
revaluated at HK$250.8 million at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$242.0
million) giving rise to an increase in fair value of HK$8.8 million in the
income statement.

Net Profit for the year decreased by 46.2% to HK$72.9 million
(2016: HK$135.7 million). Net profit margin decreased from 8.7% to
5.5% compared to last year.

PROSPECTS

It is very difficult to project into the future under the current set of
economic and political conditions. Going forward, we expect global
business environment to be turbulent and challenging. Competition
would continue to be very intense in the household electrical
appliances industry with pressure on product selling prices. We
would strive to stay slim and efficient through automation, manpower
streamlining and process improvements. We would invest in our
engineering and R&D capabilities to offer total project management
with unique and innovative product platforms to our customers.
Stringent cost and expense control, productivity efficiency
improvements, persistence in quality products and engineering and
R&D capabilities would continue to be our focus and top priorities.
We continue to seek growth opportunities through new customers
and new product categories. We will also look for business
opportunities to create higher value to our shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With our prudent and pragmatic business approach, financial
strength and commitment to excel, we will strive on and tread
cautiously to ride through the current and coming difficulties and
challenges.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total assets of HK$1,608.2
million (2016: HK$1,694.2 million) which was financed by current
liabilities of HK$417.9 million (2016: HK$424.1 million), long-term
liabilities and deferred income and taxation of HK$72.1 million (2016:
HK$96.3 million) and shareholders’ equity of HK$1,118.2 million
(2016: HK$1,173.8 million).

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and a
healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March 2017, the Group held
HK$731.3 million (2016: HK$730.6 million) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in Renminbi and US dollar,
except for temporary balances held in other currencies as required
pending specific payments. For the year ended 31 March 2017,
the Group generated net cash inflow from operating activities of
HK$152.4 milion (2016: HK$208.5 million). As at the same date,
total borrowings were HK$46.5 million (2016: HK$57.2 million) and
the gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowings to shareholders’ equity)
was 4.2% (2016: 4.9%).

We continue to apply stringent control over the working capital
cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March 2017 increased
from HK$74.6 million to HK$88.2 million. Inventory turnover
increased from 24 days to 26 days compared to last year. The
trade receivables and bills receivable balance as at 31 March
2017 decreased from HK$300.7 million to HK$254.2 million. Trade
receivables and bills receivable turnover maintained at 70 days
for both years. The trade payables balance as at 31 March 2017
decreased from HK$200.7 million to HK$188.7 million. Trade
payables turnover increased from 53 days to 61 days.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow and available
banking facilities. For the year ended 31 March, 2017, the group
invested HK$22 million (2016: HK$16 million) in plant and machinery,
moulds and tools, equipment, computer systems and other
tangible assets for expansion and upgrade to our manufacturing
facilities. The Group’s capital expenditures were funded by internal
resources and bank loans. With a healthy financial position and
available banking facilities, the Group is able to provide sufficient
financial resources for our current commitments, working capital
requirements, further expansions of the Group’s business operations
and future investment opportunities, as and when required.

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars
and Renminbis. Currently the Group does not implement hedging
activity to hedge against foreign currency exposure. However, we
will closely monitor foreign currency exposure and consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed approximately 3,770
employees (2016: 4,000). The majority of our employees work
in the PRC. The Group remunerated our employees based on
their performances, experiences and prevailing market rates while
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Share
options may also be granted to employees based on individual
performance and attainment of certain set targets.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 59, was appointed as Chairman
of the Group on 17 March 2017 and joined the Group in 1984. She
obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from Kingston University
London, England. She is responsible for formulating the Group’s
overall strategic planning and development, and also in charge of the
overall manufacturing operations of the Group.

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun,
the Honorary Chairman of the Group; sister of Mr. Cheung Shu Wan,
the Managing Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive
Director, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director and
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and
also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the
Group.

Ms. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. She is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2017, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance “SFO”, Ms. Cheung had personal interest in 600,000
shares and The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include Ms. Cheung and other family members other than spouse)
directly and indirectly had interest in 149,049,960 Shares. Details
of her interests are set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” of this report.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 56, is the Managing Director of the Group
and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of
Science from the University of London, England. He is responsible
for the sales & marketing functions of the Group. He also assists the
Chairman in corporate strategic planning and development.

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun, the Honorary
Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie,
the Chairman, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director,
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director and Mr.
Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and also
the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.

EEREREEAER

HITES

REY REL AR R-F—tF=A
TEABZERKEEE - BN —NA\EF
MAREE HERAcHEASESETE
- RE BB EAER 2 BERRIARS L%
RER W ETEAEEZEBEERT -

REDUETREEREIRRMEEZT
T EFRLERERALE RITEFERE
Bt MITESRE BT KA EHE
ERMEELE BT TRIUITESRIER
HEZERe

REZTAARNARAMEMNBARICES &
INAAR T Z #ERR A 7] > Unison Associates
Limited X PR EBRARIZEF -RZZT
—tF=A=1+—8H REZEHFEKHAEKH
FI52MF B AZIGH FTE LM Rt
{& A K The Cheung Lun Family Trust (E 5
mABERZT RKEEAMKE (BB
HN) ) BB 9 Bl A 2R A R1600,000%
A% 17 } 149,049,960 ik 15 - H #E 25 B 5 &
REAFRIEETRETZTHRABRKS 8
MR, BEEEZERRAR] —&HA-

RER REL AR AAKEEFAL
B R —AN=ZFEMALEER HHELE
MAKRBEBTEMN -RABAEEZEE
Ko T35 HE B SR TS - N BN R I E AN R B R
B AR B N B R B ) o

REREEREEREIRRR/EEZR
F ERRERLL ATEERBHX
T HTESFREEE T MAARBIF AR
BWELERNILS MARITERRELELZ

CES

Annual Report 2016/2017 —ZE—XEZ-_F—+FFIf

11



Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueg)

Mr. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. He is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2017, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Mr. Cheung had
personal interest in 49,675,335 Shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly had interest
in 149,049,960 Shares. Details of his interests are set out in the
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this report.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 54, is the Executive Director of
the Group and joined the Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from the University of London, England and a
master degree in Business Management from the City University,
England. She is responsible for the financial and administration
functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun,
the Honorary Chairman of the Group; sister of Ms. Cheung Lai
Chun, Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director and
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and
also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, Executive Director of the Group.

Ms. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. She is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2017, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Ms. Cheung had
personal interest in 1,258,000 shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly had interest in
149,049,960 shares of the Company. Details of her interests are
set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this
report.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueq)

Cheung Pui, aged 69, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 50 years of experience in the
plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all technical
aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Pui is the nephew of Mr. Cheung Lun, the Honorary
Chairman of the Group, he is also the cousin of Ms. Cheung Lai
Chun, Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director, Dr.
Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director of the Group and
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation.

Mr. Cheung is a Director of Allan Electric Mfg. Limited, Allan
International Limited, Allan Plastic Mfg. Limited, Allan Toys
Manufacturing Limited, Ever Sources Investment Limited, Ngai
Shing (Far East) Plastic & Metalwares Factory Ltd., Warran Electric
Manufacturing Limited, all being subsidiaries of the Company. He
is also a director and a shareholder of Allan Investment Co. Ltd., a
Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules), holding 11 percent of its entire issued share capital. As at 31
March 2017, according to the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Mr. Cheung had personal
interest in 1,000,000 shares of the Company. Details of his interests
are set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this
report.

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 52, is the Executive Director and
joined the Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree in Computing
Science and a MSc degree in Management Science, both at
Imperial College London. He also holds a PhD degree in Automation
from the University of Bristol, and is a member of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. He is in charge of engineering, research
and development functions, and also management of intellectual
property/patent application.

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun, the
Honorary Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing Director,
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director and Mr. Cheung
Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and also the
cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueg)

Dr. Cheung is a Director of Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited
and Total Profits Limited, all being subsidiaries of the Company.
He is also a director of Allan Investment Co. Ltd., a Controlling
Shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). Dr.
Cheung has personal interest in 900,000 shares and The Cheung
Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Dr. Cheung and
other family members other than spouse) directly and indirectly has
interest in 149,049,960 shares.

Non-Executive Director

Cheung Lun, aged 89, is the founder of the Group. He had been
the Chairman since the listing of the Company in 1992 until he is
appointed as Honorary Chairman on 17 March 2017. He has more
than 50 years of management and technical experience in the
industry.

Mr. Cheung Lun is the father of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie,
the Chairman of the Group, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director, Dr.
Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director and Mr. Cheung
Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and also the
uncle of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.

Mr. Cheung is a Director of Unison Associates Limited and
Allan Investment Company Limited, controlling shareholders of
the Company. As at 31 March 2017, according to the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
Mr. Cheung is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include other family members other than
spouse) which directly and indirectly had interest in 149,049,960
shares. Details of his interests are set out in the “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this report.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan How Chun, Rita, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and a PhD
degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor majoring
in commercial and property works.

Lo Chung Mau, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 1997. Professor Lo is a surgeon and
is currently Hospital Chief Executive of the University of Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Hospital, and the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Chair of
Hepatobility and Pancreatic Surgery of the University of Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 57, is the Director of Cost
Innovation and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from the University of Wales, England. He is
responsible for the purchasing and sourcing functions of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun, the
Honorary Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing Director,
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director and Dr. Cheung
Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director; and also the cousin of Mr.
Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.

Mr. Cheung is a director of Allan Electric Mfg. Limited, Allan
International Limited, Allan Plastic Mfg. Limited, Allan Toys
Manufacturing Limited, Artreal Manufactory Limited, Ever Sources
Investment Limited, Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic & Metalwares
Factory Ltd., Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited, all being
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of Allan
Investment Co. Ltd., a Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing Rules). Mr. Cheung is one of the beneficiaries
of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which include
Mr. Cheung and other family members other than spouse) which
directly and indirectly has interest in 149,049,960 shares.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continuea)

Chung Chi Yin, aged 54, is the Director of Engineering and joined
the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science in
Product Design and Technology from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He is responsible for the product development of the Group.

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 49, is the Director of Manufacturing
and joined the Group in 1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor
of Business (Transport and Logistics Management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology. She is responsible for the
manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Li Wai Ho, aged 53, is the Director of Sales and Marketing
and joined the Group in 2012. He possesses a master degree
in management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
bachelor degree in engineering from Manchester University in United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of experience in various functions in
Multinational Corporation. He is responsible for sales and marketing
function of the Group.

Li Wing Kong, aged 57, is the Director of Quality Assurance and
joined the Group in 2013. He obtained Higher Diploma of Electrical
Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is responsible for the
Quality Assurance of the Group.

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 50, is the Director of
Manufacturing and joined the Group in 1987. She is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Tsui Wing Keung, aged 61, is the Moulds and Tools Manager of
the Group and joined the Group in 1992. He has over 20 years of
experience in plastic injection mould making. He is responsible for
the management of the mould making operation for plastic injection
moulds.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continuea)

Wong Lai Yung, aged 55, is the Company Secretary and Finance
and Account Manager of the Group and joined the Group in 2006.
She holds a master degree of Business Administration and a master
degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong. She also obtained her master degree in Economics from
Jinan University, PRC. Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified Tax Adviser
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. She is responsible for the
Company’s secretarial duties and financial and accounting aspects
of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 54, is the Director of Administration and
Personnel and joined the Group in 2000. She obtained a Higher
Certificate in Company Secretaryship and Administration from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is responsible for the human
resources and administration management of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes to the Group’s principle activities during
the current year.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, including an
analysis using financial key performance indicators, the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, important events
affecting the Group and an indication of likely future development
of the Group’s business can be found in “Chairman Statement” set
out on Pages 4 to 5, “Management Discussion and Analysis” set
out on pages 7 to 10, “Financial Highlights” set out on page 6 and
“Financial Risk Management objectives and policies” (Note 28b) set
out on pages 122 to 129 of this annual report.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The success of the Group depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise customers, suppliers, employees and
shareholders.

Customers
The Group’s major customers are companies selling household
electrical appliances under well-known brand names. The Group
maintains long-term and good relationship with its customers. The
Group strives to provide excellent service and quality products to our
customers.
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Directors’ Report

Relationship with Stakeholders (continueq)

Suppliers

Supply chain is a critical aspect of our operations. The Group
maintains long-term and good relationship with its suppliers. The
Group selects its suppliers based on assessment criteria including,
among others, cost, quality, experience, capability, capacity,
sustainability and ethical behavior. The Group requires all suppliers
to comply with relevant manufacturing and safety standards. The
Group has communicated to all the suppliers of the Group’s strict
compliance to anti-bribery which is also required to be observed by
all suppliers.

Employees

Employees are one of the most valuable assets of the Group. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package together with
safe and harmonious workplace. In-house and external trainings and
seminars are provided to employee for their business and personal
development. Recreational activities are organized periodically and
employees are encouraged to participate in volunteer work. The
Group has been nominated and awarded Caring Company since
2007.

Shareholders

The Group endeavors to maximize the return to its shareholders. The
Group strives to achieve profit growth and stable dividend payouts
taking into account the business development needs and financial
health of the Group.

Environmental Policies

The Group recognizes the importance of achieving environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong. The manufacturing sites in
the PRC and our head office in Hong Kong are certified with the
ISO 14001:2004 standard for environmental management system.
The Group incorporates the Reduce, Reuse and Recycle principle
and implements environmental-friendly measures in operations and
workplaces to achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction
and energy saving.
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Directors’ Report

Environmental Policies (continuea)

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the ESG Reporting Guide
contained in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be available on
our website within three months from the publication of this annual
report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2017, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the year, none of the Directors was interested in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 54.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per share amounting to
HK$6,709,000 in aggregate was paid to the ordinary shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK10.5 cents per ordinary share in respect of the
current year to the ordinary shareholders on the register of members
on 25 August 2017, amounting to HK$35,220,000 in aggregate.
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Directors’ Report

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:

EEERE
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Purchases EEHE
— the largest supplier —mAHER 9%
— five largest suppliers combined —RAREEEEET 24%
Sales §H & 2R
— the largest customer - ABEE 30%
— five largest customers combined —RAKEEAG 96%

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 144 of the annual
report.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Directors’ Report EEERE

Distributable Reserves of the Company  AAQ T A2k E

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981 MRRERFIIN BIEBREZE— LN\ —F208]
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the sE(EETAR) B A BB IR DR o HEAAD
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot TN EREIEN IR E DR B AR
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed 5

surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities (a) WEEDREEXEEEINHEE X
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the b) HASBRBEEESALIREEGEINU
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share REOBETIEA N IRG HEEE 2 8 -
premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available EERAERARNFIR_E—+FEF=H=+—
for distribution to shareholders at 31 March 2017 comprised the BRIt OR FIRE 2 HESREEN AB1E

retained profit of HK$155,018,000 (2016: HK$88,769,000). 550188 BT ( — & — /X% :8,87689T
BIT) °
Investment Properties BREWE
As at 31st March 2017, principal properties held for investment N-_TE—++F=A=+—H HEKEZE
purposes are as follows: EYEMT
Address: ik
—  9th Floor, AXA Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong — BABELTITE151M L ERP LE
- Car Parking Space No. 303 on 3rd Floor, — EAELTITEIS1HETE D O3E
AXA Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong SHE 73035k
- Car Parking Space No. 304 on 3rd Floor, — BBEELITEIS1RLEAL3E
AXA Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong SHE(73045%
Lot No.: R AR 5% -
- The Remaining Portion of Section A of the Inland Lot No. 2755 —  NHER B 27555 ARI R ER
- The Remaining Portion of Inland Lot No. 2755 —  AHER 275557 R ER
Existing Use: Office rental RERE SFEHA
Lease Term: Long term HLFH: RE

Details of the movement of investment properties of the Group are REBZIHEBYESHEEERNGEEHE
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. REEHE14 o
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Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$22 million on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to expand
and upgrade its manufacturing facilities. Details of these and other
movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
(Appointed as Chairman on 17/3/2017)
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing Director)
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Mr. Cheung Pui
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William (Appointed on 28/9/2016)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung Lun (He stepped down as Chairman of the Board,
appointed as Honorary Chairman, ceased to be Executive director,
and was re-designated as Non-executive director with effect from
17/3/2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. Cheung
Lai See, Sophie and Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita shall retire by rotation
at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.
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Directors’ Report

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts (continuea)

According to bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr. Cheung
Shu Sang, William shall hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ EERFETHRAERKRRG
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, ARG BEEFZEZEK
Underlying Shares and Debentures B @)

(Continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company AAABREEIOBTZEER

Number of ordinary shares held Approximate %

FEERTERREE of the issued
Personal Other share capital
Name Capacity interest interest Total  of the Company
fhRaE
BETRH L
e 5t AL Hipes ay BOE
Mr. Cheung Lun Founder of discretionary trust - 149,049,960 149,049,960 44.44%
RRTE PREFZIRIA (Note)
(W)
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan Beneficial Owner 49,675,335
RER LA ERBBA
Beneficiary of trust 149,049,960 198,725,295 59.24%
EAZEA (Note)
(W)
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie Beneficial Owner 600,000
REYRT ERHAA
Beneficiary of trust 149,049,960 149,649,960 44.61%
FHAZRA (Note)
(Hat)
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie Beneficial Owner 1,258,000
REMLL ERBAA
Beneficiary of trust 149,049,960 150,307,960 44.81%
EAZEA (Note)
(W)
Mr. Cheung Pui Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.30%
RELE ERBAA
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William Beneficial Owner 900,000
RHEET ERBAA
Beneficiary of trust
ERXEA 149,049,960 149,949,960 44.70%
(Note)
(W)
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)
Note:

The references to 149,049,960 shares relate to the same block of shares
in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan Investment
Co. Limited (“AICL"), 7,658,000 shares are held by Commence Investment
Limited (“CIL”) and 6,570,000 shares are held by Unison Associates Limited
(*UAL”). AICL and CIL are owned as to 89.0% and 100% respectively
by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of
the shareholding of UAL and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are,
among others, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March 2017,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

26 Allan International Holdings Limited Zx @I EEE AR D 7

EEERE

EERTETHRAERKRMD
EE@H&@~EE%§ZE§&?&
= (#)

AARBREECIOBTZEEBR (&
Kt -

bt BT R e 2 149,049,9608% A8 A B % 19 - B 15
A — P& {7 # 5 - H 71134,821,9608% A% 19 /A 5= @
KREERAAR([EMmIE])FE - 7,658,000
BEOEMEREBRAR ([MERE]FE
%:6,570,0004% % 13 B3 Unison Associates Limited
(TUALD#F B - fmi & 289.0% = L £
% & 2 100%4E 25 RUALTE B © 5R s 58 £ 2 The
Cheung Lun Family Trust ([Trust | ) 2 BfE® T
A ° Credit Suisse Trust LimitedATrustZ E5F A
F 1D FFH100%,2 UALRR #&E » TrustZz 7] BE 5 25 A
(BEMAN) R EREBEE RERZL RE
Wzt MR AEE -

BRIAEFTEEIIN RARICESFEREET
BABSHKEBMEAL R_ZT—+tF=A
=+—H RBRAQEHEBEERT (E
ZRBHREEKRGIEXVE) 2 K- HE
RS EEZD HEBRERES KBAEED
FEXVENETRFE8D /A BAA N 7] K B AL
FT SR IE B 5 R BB 150 35218 7B 58 A
ZAGBI T B M SR IRIRETRIZ R E
BBAMARNRI R ESIAR (BIE
REFREZ KB GRD 2 7ZF B X R
RARBEB 2 ERIOKR) o



Directors’ Report

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Update on Directors’ Information
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, Wiliam has been appointed as Executive
Director of the Company on 28 September 2016.

Mr. Cheung Lun, the Chairman and an Executive Director, has
ceased to be the Chairman and has been re-designated as a Non-
Executive Director and appointed as the Honorary Chairman on 17
March 2017.

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, the Executive Director of the Group,
has been appointed as the Chairman on 17 March 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other changes in the Directors’
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report

Appointment of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities
on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement and Contracts of
Significance

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair Pacific Limited
granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain land in Lilin Village,
Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the
PRC at a monthly rent of HK$82,000. The tenancy agreement
was for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2010 and
renewable up to year 2028 on every 5 years. The total amount of
rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
HK$984,000.

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Income
Village Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, pursuant to
which Income Village Limited granted to APML a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin Village, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2014. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin Village, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$75,000. The tenancy agreement was a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2014. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement and Contracts of
Significance (continuea)

The above transactions were approved by the independent non-
executive directors and were conducted on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business of the Group and in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than disclosed above, no transactions, arrangement and
contracts of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director or a connected entity of a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Emolument Policy

Salary package for employees are structured by reference to
market conditions, staff’'s experience and individual performance.
Other benefits offered by the Group included medical insurance,
mandatory provident fund scheme, training subsidies, share option
scheme and discretionary bonus.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company
and decided by the Board, with reference to the market rates,
commitment, contribution and their duties, and responsibilities with
the Group. Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in details in
note 7 to the financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and long/short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company.
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Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity
Y g4
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee
SFEA
UAL Held by controlled corporation

FTizslz ARIEHE
Beneficial Owner
ExBEAA

AICL Beneficial Owner
DRiE ExBEAA

Webb, David Michael Beneficial Owner
EnEBA
Held by controlled corporation

iRt PA/NCIES Y )

Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial Owner
ExBEAA
Note:

The reference to 26,007,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$135,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 33 to 45.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws/articles of association, or the laws of Bermuda, which

would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2017.
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Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate, all
code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in
the CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout
the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report, applied and complied with most of the Code
Provisions save certain deviations from the Code Provisions in
respect of code provisions A.4.1, A4.2, A51, A6.7 and E.1.2
details of which are explained below.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Company (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
made specific enquiry to all directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code during the year under review and they have all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Ms. Cheung
Lai Chun, Maggie (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing
Director), Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, Mr. Cheung Pui and Dr.
Cheung Shu Sang, William; one Non-Executive Director, being Mr.
Cheung Lun (Honorary Chairman); three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, being Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon
and Professor Lo Chung Mau. Biographical details, which include
relationships among members of the Board, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of the annual report.

Annual Report 2016/2017 —E—RXEZ-F—+tFFH 33

ERERRE

ARARPREGEE AU AREE 2K
EBERTOEE - ARTENET (E
BEBAT)BEBBERIMBERAFES
LR (T EmRA) 814 TREER
SPRI) (TeE PR s A e RIS (57
AR ]) »

RRaE 2 EEERTR TR E E R A
8142 18 5 B P & T A9 JR I A0 ST BRI ST
Mzl - B FAMEXA41 A42 A51 "
ABTREI2EARARIBE TIRBETAIEX
ABINER TG - ARRIREBE=ZT
—+tF=ZA=F+—BHLEFE URBERE
SR A IE - BB AR SFRMES o

EFETESFRS

ARRERA LETRAEOPTE Z LA
AEFETEFXZNFEETR ([1EES
A1) - ARFEHHWHREETREEFAEE
ERARAETRETRZIT/IELER 2
BREFHRRARSD 2R ETRIM
MEZIZRE-

EE=g

ARREZGXREERRABATES K
BYRZL(XF) RERLE(EFEK
B)  REBH L RIBEAENMREABE L
—(IIMITESE RetE (REXFE) R
—EBIUFRNTES REFF L BHER
TENEEXBE BEFE (BEREFS
REFEZBRBEREAFREZLRERE
BABIA-



Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

° Approval of interim and year end dividend

° Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

° Monitoring the performance of the management

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, four board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year are
as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 4/4
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 4/4
Mr. Cheung Pui 4/4
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William 2/4

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Lun 4/4
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

Attendance/

Independent Non-Executive Directors No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita 4/4
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 4/4
Professor Lo Chung Mau 4/4

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three Independent Non-Executive Directors and one of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related finance management
expertise. Each of the Independent Non-Executive Director has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for directors and officers liability
insurance to indemnity its directors against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director, Mr.
Cheung Shu Wan (“MD”) were no different from that required of a
chief executive stipulated under the code provision A.2 of the Code.
The management would regard that the term MD will have the same
meaning as the chief executive of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Chairman and Chief Executive (continueq)

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, the Chairman of the Board is
an Executive Director, who is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring that all significant and
key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board
timely and constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day operation,
and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the achievement
of its business objectives with the assistance of the executive
directors and senior management.

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, none of the Non-Executive Director and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. In accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director
appointed by the Board during the year shall retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first general meeting immediately
following his/her appointment. Further, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office. The directors
to retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are similar to those
in the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors (continued)

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after their appointment, and
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the chairman and/or
managing director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account on determining the number of directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is a key
factor to the successful implementation of any long term business
plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is most
beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Training

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
All directors participate in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
material relevant to the Company’s business or to the directors’
duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31 March 2017,
the Company has provided an update on the latest development and
changes of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations
relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities to each of Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai
See, Sophie, Mr. Cheung Pui, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, Mr.
Cheung Lun, Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and
Professor Lo Chung Mau to keep themselves update on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. The Company has
received the records of training from all directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term
of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During the
year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 September
2016, assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices,
major judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on the risk management and internal control
systems.

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 2/2
Professor Lo Chung Mau 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 March 2012
with written terms of reference as stated in Code B.1.2 of the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, majority of which are Independent Non-
Executive Directors. Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon, being an Independent
Non-Executive Director, acts as the chairman. Dr. Chan How Chun,
Rita, an Independent Non-Executive Director and Ms. Cheung Lai
See, Sophie, an Executive Director, are the Committee Members.
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Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Committee (continueq)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board for the determination of the
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board for the directors’ fee of non-
executive directors. It takes into account factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies with similar size and trade,
education background and qualification of each director and senior
management, time commitment and responsibilities of directors and
senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting.
Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita 1/1
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 1/1

Details on the emolument payable to the directors and the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in notes 7 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

Nomination of Directors

Code Provision A.5.1 stipulates that the Company should establish
a nomination committee. Currently, the Company does not
have a nomination committee. The Board will identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members when necessary. The
Board will give due consideration to the suitability of a candidate
for directorship after taking into account of his/her experience,
qualification and other relevant factors. All candidates must also
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees
and directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Lai Yung joined the Company since 2006 and was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 20 September 2012. Ms.
Wong is responsible to update and provide advice to the Board in
relation to directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, applicable
laws and regulations, and corporate governance matters. Ms. Wong
has provided her training records to the Company indicating her
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Wong’s biographical details are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of the annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Director’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (i) selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying the selected accounting policies
consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
set out on pages 46 to 51 of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as
follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$'000

Audit services 2,088
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 300

Taxation services 401

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 24

Annual Report 2016/2017 —E—REZ-F—tFFH H

TRERRE

MEERH

RER ARBINEBERFAES AR
@O

EEHUBRHRRZER

EEgHRARSECEER: (BEMBRE
ENREVARE RRARTZ M BHOR ()
BEUEAZETHR YTHERERZSTE
SRR MEHER  AF REEZ HE &
flate

REEREE 2 2HRETIEZRREEH N K
FEREFI6E51HRN o

BB B &=

REBEFE BXNARRZBENEE)
BRI EAEMITZMEMT

EHR%E ENEA

FET

ZE PR 75 2,088
IEZE RS

EMPEHIEE 300

B AR 401

B RIKETE 2 BZ 24



Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit function
for the Group in order to meet its needs.

During the year, the Group appointed KLC Transactions Limited
(“KLC”) as an external independent professional to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of interviews; and

° independently perform internal control reviews and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.
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Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Controls
(Continued)

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures as
recommended by KLC to enhance the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the Group were
adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and recommendations
of KLC as well as the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considered the internal control and risk management systems
effective and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to comply
with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The internal control mechanism
includes information flow and reporting processes, confidentiality
arrangements, disclosure procedures, and staff training
arrangements, etc.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management and further enhance the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems as appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report

Shareholders’ Rights

On the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, the Board
may convene a special general meeting to address specific issues
of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of written
notice to the registered office of the Company. The requisition must
state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s).

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or not less than 100 shareholders may
propose any resolution at the annual general meeting and circulate
to other shareholders written statement with respect to the matter to
be dealt with at the annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 12/F, Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King'’s
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All Directors and external auditors make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’ queries. The
Company also responds to requests for information and queries
from the shareholders and investors and welcomes the views of
shareholders on matter affecting the Group and encourages them
to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate any concerns they
might have with the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

Communication with Shareholders
(Continued)

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita
and Professor Lo Chung Mau, did not attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 18 August 2016 due to other
business engagements.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the Audit Committee should attend the annual
general meeting. Both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman
of the Audit Committee had not attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 18 August 2016. The Chairmen
will endeavour to attend all future annual general meetings of the
Company unless unexpected or special circumstances prevent them
from doing so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 52 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters

B ZHERE

BARENEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional HRETFEHEREBERMNEEAL R
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated HARGEMBRERNBETRREENSE

financial statements of the current period. These matters were He iz EHESERMBEREATIFR
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial KREHAERRKRETREN -RMTELHE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we LEBRRESENER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFrylEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significant assumptions and
judgements involved in determining their fair value.
BPERREDENEEFERBRNEAFTE EHR
FEORTEH A FEMES S LEARBRZ M E -

The Group’s investment properties amounted to
HK$250,800,000 as at 31 March 2017 and a gain
from changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$8,800,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended.
“TtF=A=+—RH SFEREWESHR2(85080
BB TRKREMEN R FEES 2 BFFHEESB0E E T
ERAFEGFEERRAMEEKERRTER -

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, all of the Group’s investment properties
were stated at fair value based on valuations performed
by a firm of independent qualified professional
surveyors (“Surveyors”). The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was determined by adopting the
direct comparison method. The valuation is sensitive
to the market unit rate of comparable properties and
adjustment factors for size, view and floor level of
property and timing of the comparable transactions.
REEMBREENTUIRE SEMAEREDEDN
ATERBRE-—RAANBEYZEZS EERMEERM CllE
Bi) ME-SEREMENATERRABEELBRAE
EE - MERA LR TS B BRERK  MENRT
=SB BEMBUNXRZIERIESARNERE-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMWESFNAHBEREASHETER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

B AR ERENENEFEHE:

e FEvaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Surveyors;
o B UESERMGBERMBTERS EMTEHE-

e (Obtaining an understanding from the Surveyors about
the valuation technique, the performance of the market,
significant assumptions adopted and key inputs used in
the valuations; and

o RSB MUANGEERN  THRER  AEAK
BARBERMGESEABERREAZBIE, &

e Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs used
by the Surveyors in the valuation model, including the
market unit rate of individual unit and adjustment factors
for size, view and floor level of property and timing of
comparable transactions against current market data
and entity specific information on a sample basis.

o FMHRAERMANGERENERANERAARENSRE
M BIEENSEMNTISBEMBENDENRT =8
MEEBARAIER SR REEEN T SEENERAR
EERAREER UERAABER-
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B2 AR S

P BN BT 4R S B I IR R
ENET e

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Sunnie Sy.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain (loss) from changes in fair value
of investment properties

Gain on sale and
leaseback arrangement

Finance costs on bank loans

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Other comprehensive expense:
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations
Net fair value gain (loss) on
available-for-sale investments
Reclassified to profit or loss upon
redemption of available-for-sale
investments

Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to owners of
the Company

Earnings per share
Basic
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mEBER
Hi 2 mH s =

—E+tF=RA=tT—HILFE

2017 2016
ZE—tF —EB—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
K1t FETT FET
€ 1,325,082 1,565,325
(1,133,545) (1,376,692)
191,537 188,633
6 28,942 13,420
8 (1,826) (3,211)
(24,703) (30,148)
(117,849) (129,511)
14 8,800 (6,000)
9 - 110,788
(676) (959)
84,225 143,012
10 (11,278) (7,356)
11 72,947 135,656
(10,055) (6,408)
514 (727)
30 47
(9,511) (7,088)
63,436 128,568

18

HK21.7 centsi#All  HK40.4 centsi& Il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2017

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—REF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaE FHT FHT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REYE 14 250,800 242,000
Property, plant and equipment Y% B E K&t 15 179,602 229,057
Prepaid lease payments FERNEEFKIE 16 22,994 24,833
Club debentures 2HEES 17 13,176 13,866
Available-for-sale investments AT ERE 18 17,010 16,031
Financial assets designated at fair value & BB 25 1%/ $TEEJF§%'~—
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”) Bi5 & E 19 1,920 3,495
Deposits paid for acquisition of ENBEBEYE - BEK
property, plant and equipment BEHA 1,879 108
487,381 529,390
Current assets MEEE
Inventories 58 20 88,210 74,589
Trade receivables and bills receivable FEUWE Z) AR 3k & FE R 15 21 254,189 300,729
Other receivables B At JE U BR 3K 21 22,157 29,918
Mould deposits paid EfEART® 14,295 13,012
Prepaid lease payments A EKIE 16 677 704
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 18 8,548 3,538
Tax recoverable BRI 1,441 11,695
Short-term deposits 52 HRTF 3K 22 213,362 305,732
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRAS 22 517,924 424,879
1,120,803 1,164,796
Current liabilities mBEE
Trade payables B E SR 23 188,658 200,717
Other payables and accruals H b e IR R T RS 122,885 133,242
Deferred income R IE WA 9 19,252 19,252
Mould deposits received EWEART 41,213 26,919
Tax liabilities FEHE IR 40,734 33,261
Secured bank loans BEBHREITER
— due within one year ——F AN E|H 24 5,124 10,672
417,866 424,063
Net current assets mENE EFE 702,937 740,733
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAG 1,190,318 1,270,123
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2017

Non-current liabilities ERFEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE
Deferred income EIEY A
Secured bank loans BEBEITER

— due after one year — —F 1% 5| Hf

Net assets BEFE

Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital (&N
Reserves it

e AR R &

R-_T—tF=HA=+—H

2017 2016

ZE—tF —B—RF

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kt FETT FET
25 13,069 12,855
9 17,649 36,901
24 41,409 46,533
72,127 96,289

1,118,191 1,173,834

26 33,543 33,543
1,084,648 1,140,291

1,118,191 1,173,834

N ES2E E143B 2B REE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 143 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29
June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG LAI CHUN, MAGGIE
REY
Director

EF
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Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEZSER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2T —+tF=A=+—HIFE
Capital  Investment
Share Share  redemption  revaluation  Translation Dividend Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RAEE RE
R R EE 11 EfhfifE ELGE REFE REER ekl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FET FAET FAT FET FAT FET FET
At 1 April 2015 R-Z—-hEMNA—A 33,543 109,884 793 193 33,473 25,157 872,412 1,075,455
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - 135,656 135,656
Exchange differences arising on BERELL
translation ERES - = - - (6,408) - - (6,408)
Net loss on revaluation of AHRHERE
available-for-sale investments EfERFE - = = (727) = = = (727)
Cumulative loss reclassified to profit or & 2 A # H & 1% & #
loss on redemption of available-for- 2t EREN RS
sale investments BER - - - 47 - - - 47
Other comprehensive expense AEEEMEE
for the year i - - - (680) (6,408) - - (7,088)
Total comprehensive (expense) income  AFEE2ME (X iH)
for the year e - - - (680) (6,408) - 135,656 128,568
Dividend proposed for 2016 (note 12) ~ $HEE-FT—AERE
(BaE12) - - - - - 18,449 (18,449) -
Special dividend proposed for 2016 BRE-T-NERFIRE - - - - - 93,921 (93,921) =
Dividends recognised as distribution REDEZRE
(note 12) (BiaE12) - = = - = (25,157) (5,032) (30,189)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R-E-x"E=A=1+—A
E=F-~EMA—-H 33,543 109,884 793 (487) 27,065 112,370 890,666 1,173,834
Profit for the year KEEEF - - - - - - 72,947 72,947
Exchange differences arising on BREREEZ
translation ELESR - - - - (10,055) - - (10,055)
Net gain on revaluation of AfHERE
available-for-sale investments ERRIFE - - - 514 - - - 514
Cumulative loss reclassified to BRA L EREN
profit or loss on redemption of 2 ERENHEE
available-for-sale investments BER - - - 30 - - - 30
Other comprehensive income (expense) AFEEMEE
for the year gz (F1H) - - = 544 (10,055) = - (9,511)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AN fE 2 E MKz
for the year (2 e - - = 544 (10,055) = 72,947 63,436
Dividend proposed for 2017 (note 12) ~ #EE%E —Z—LERE
(BisE12) - - - - - 35,220 (35,220) =
Dividends recognised as distribution REDRZRE
(note 12) (BiaE12) - = = - = (112,370) (6,709) (119,079)
At 31 March 2017 R-Z—tF=f=1+—-A 33,543 109,884 793 57 17,010 35,220 921,684 1,118,191
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows fv?

For the year ended 31 March 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Release of prepaid lease payments

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(Gain) loss from changes in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs

Interest income

Net loss on redemption of available-for-sale
investments

Net (gain) loss on financial assets
designated at FVTPL

Amortisation of deferred income

Gain on sale and leaseback arrangement

Loss on disposal of a club debenture

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-off of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade receivables and
bills receivable
Decrease in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in mould deposits paid
Decrease in trade payables
Decrease in other payables and accruals

Increase (decrease) in mould deposits received

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund (paid)
The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

;
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2017 2016
—E—tF T REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
84,225 143,012
677 704
59,641 68,185
(8,800) 6,000
676 959
(3,010) (4,746)
30 47
(315) 140
(19,252) (1,604)
- (110,788)
181 =
(37) (100)
428 162
114,444 101,971
(13,621) 29,135
46,540 99,304
7,761 69,326
(1,283) 3,445
(12,059) (61,876)
(10,357) (7,298)
14,294 (6,993)
145,719 227,014
10,953 (11,269)
(4,290) (7,213)
152,382 208,538




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #R&

For the year ended 31 March 2017

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal of short-term deposits
Proceeds on redemption of
available-for-sale investments
Interest received
Proceeds on redemption of financial assets
designated at FVTPL
Proceeds on disposal of a club debenture
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net proceeds on sale and
leaseback arrangement
Placement of short-term deposits
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of available-for-sale investments
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

New bank loans raised
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR, represented by
bank balances and cash

IE%/)ILE'\HE

 E-E—tF=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E 5 —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
BREEH
REE HiTE 2K 435,298 275,806
FEO At HERE

FT 15 3078 8,981 1,550
2 W F| B 3,010 4,746
E?’f@Tﬁiﬂ?EﬁT&}E@WE

STECZHEEEZR 1,890 -
tlj%—flAﬁﬂf%%Fm%fk 509 -
HEWE BE KRB

FT 15 3008 116 656
B EREERBMHELTHAERIE

= 177,757
TR R B TE 51 (342,928) (384,231)
BEME BMEIAXRE (21,578) (13,410)
BEAHEOERE (14,456) (6,666)
ENBEYME - HEX&

B (1,879) (108)
RETEFELERESFEH 68,963 56,100
7l & R B
BT E (119,079) (30,189)
BEEHMRITER 17,050 17,050
BEFETEX (27,722) (37,943)
B F B (676) (959)
MEEB MRS FHE (130,427) (52,041)
HeRBREZEE

¥ H &8 90,918 212,597
REDZRERBELEE

424,879 208,304
INEESTE SRR B v & 2,127 3,978
REECHERBELEE
HERETEFLRE
517,924 424,879
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Allan Investment
Company Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong
Kong; and its ultimate holding company is Credit Suisse
Trust Limited, who is a trustee of The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (“Trust”), the discretionary beneficiaries of which are,
among other family members, the directors of the Company,
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing of
household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in current year:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014

Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint

Operations

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2. Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation that have been
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B EER ([FEAMBER
HEA]) @

C 28 i {8 s R A Rz #T R R ARME RT 2
AR 2

AREE I EITF A THIE BB
REMZFHET RBIETEEMNERE

issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HK (IFRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the
related Amendments'
Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Disclosure Initiative*
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses*

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016
Cycle®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  42& B FE 3R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—t&F=HA=+—HItFE

2. Application of New and 2. BRI RKEBITEEH

Amendments to Hong Kong B EER ([F BB KR

Financial Reporting Standards HEH]) @

(“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in EEME R RERZFHET RELIEFTE

issue but not yet effective (Continued) AleRE (2)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January t RZFE—N\F—H—Hzkz&RAKRZ
2018 [ HARR A AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZE—NE—A—Bsz2&AKZ
2019 FE AR A R

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be g KT B Bk 2 B R mFE A
determined £

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 RZE—tF—H—Hzkz&RAKRZ
2017 5 HARR A AR

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 RZE—tFE—A—HazBHAKZ
2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate FEHESH—ZT—N\F—HA—H8 (@

)£

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BB BHREEREIRETHMT A

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification BEAUMBHREERNEIRSIASHE

and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, E -cRAE  —REPSHELESH

general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for BEREHRAENDBHEASNFIER.

financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2. Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continueq)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  42& B FE 3R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—t&F=HA=+—HItFE

2. Application of New and 2. BRI KRBT EEH

Amendments to Hong Kong B EER ([FBH KR
Financial Reporting Standards HEH]) @
(“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in EEMEMRERZIFT REETE

issue but not yet effective (Continued) AlR2E (&)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) BB BHREENEIFEMT A

(#4)

e In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS e NMUBBEEZREmMES BEB
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed SR EREIRB N REELER
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. EFEBEEXHEER BB
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to MEEANBERRECRBHEE
account for expected credit losses and changes in those EERXHE - BHEEBER
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect AHRTCEBNERE R BB
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other EEEELZSEREEEEZ
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have AR URBEERRS V]
occurred before credit losses are recognised. IRERAR BB T2 BAE

BREEEESEHITRRAEES
Be

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk BEASRER=_ZTE—ttF=A=1+—

management policies as at 31 March 2017, the directors of AMemTARRREERE EFE

the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in the R AR ERAB BB EERFER K

future may have a material impact on the classification and EHARENEREEN Y BREFE

measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The Group’s EEBERTE AEENAIHEERE
available-for-sale investments, will either be measured as AiEERBREATEYERSIEEAS
fair value through profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI RATFEFAERMEERE (BFEEX

(subject to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition, EEFE)FFE - WIN HHREEEE

the expected credit loss model may result in early provision TR =0 7] B8 & B Y AN & B R 4 S K AN E+

of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the ENERMEENMKEENEEEEE

Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost. LR PR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments (Continueq)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 in the future will have a material
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in
the respective reporting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$4,306,000 as disclosed
in note 31. The director of the Company will assess the impact
of the application of HKFRS 16. For the moment, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial
effect until the directors of the Company complete a detailed
review.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I&3RE /st

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E—E—tF=A=1+—HLFE

3. FESTHHE»

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I&3RE /st

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E—E—tF=A=1+—HLFE

3. FESTHHE»

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. Examples and indicators that
individually or in combination would normally lead to a lease
being classified as a finance lease are:

o the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee
by the end of the lease term;

o the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price
that is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair value
at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to be
reasonably certain, at the inception of the lease, that the
option will be exercised;

Annual Report 2016/2017 —Z2—REZ-F—tFFH{K 71

e MBREEME

(E_F—tF=A=+—HILFE

FESTBE »)

EEERR
ERBIIRE WK B Z AR ER
B -ZXBBAREGTEPRE [
0% B A AR AT 3%

EmiHE R e R Al AT E WA
AREAREENGERAAREAER
mn B M T B BB T AR -

pu

MBWATIAREAEERZERE
BATRBEERERM X RE > ma&H
XRBRNT AT EEEMEENTR
AHEHR M B RBRS WA ERERLIR
RZBERMFENL X -

AEERALEHEZ 2 XBEN S
BER2 R T XEEt R -

HE

NS HEREEZ A RN EERBA
BHEBREABE T A RMEES -
ERENIHEAMENESRT S
HOOIBAREHER: -

s HKHEHAEREN HEHEED
FIERBREAEA:

s EREEMEREEE MM
ERAFER  ABABERA
TEEH AERTEEEREE
ZYE - EHERRE  ZITER
AT L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
° the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset even if title is not transferred;

° at the inception of the lease the present value of
the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset;

o the leased assets are of such a specialised nature
that only the lessee can use them without major
modifications;

o if the lessee can cancel the lease, the lessor’'s losses
associated with the cancellation are borne by the lessee;

° gains or losses from the fluctuation in the fair value of the
residual accrue to the lessee (for example, in the form of
a rent rebate equalling most of the sales proceeds at the
end of the lease); and

o the lessee has the ability to continue the lease for a
secondary period at a rent that is substantially lower than
market rent.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

When a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating
lease, and the sale price is above fair value, the excess over
fair value shall be deferred and amortised over the period for
which the asset is expected to be used.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Annual Report 2016/2017 —E—RXEZ-F—+tFFH{ 73

e MBREEME

(E_F—tF=A=+—HILFE

FESTBE »)

HE (&)

EEBEREBEA

REHEN BRI RYBANIA
EREREPARR AR BM5
BRGHEEERERMEEAE AR
M MEBE 2 B an IR I OH FERR
e

EVELEREROBMELENRL S
HE REEERSNAFER BH
THAFESSRENIZZEENTR
BREIEEE Tk

HELHREF

EHEERITHWEET AEEFE
ZEHREREGMEL 2 HERES
B WIEBHREES D K EHENR
EHE BRIFZMBHABRSKEH
E ERBEAT BOHEERERKE
HE-LER SEEMNEE (BFE
] —XMEBENMNR) EHERH SRR FH
BRUEHE L REFREREDZNQ
FEMLHIDER -

HEFRREMA EN DR K2HE
LM mEERSMBIRKD S
SIANEERR] REKREEEH
SHREE  HERBEATFERASBRA
SRR E T AIBRSP o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the Group’s
property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I&3RE /st

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E—E—tF=A=1+—HLFE

3. FESTHHE»

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when it is
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 28c.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I&3RE /st

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E—E—tF=A=1+—HLFE

3. FESTHEEX #)

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, or loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, and changes in
foreign exchange rates, if applicable are recognised in profit
or loss. Dividend on AFS equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bills receivable, other receivables, short-
term deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period of 90 days, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bills receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable and a bill receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I&3RE /st

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E—E—tF=A=1+—HLFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and secured bank loans) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the investment
properties on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value of HK$250,800,000 (2016:
HK$242,000,000) based on the valuation performed by a firm
of independent qualified professional surveyors.

In determining the fair value, surveyors have used the direct
comparison method which involves estimates of fair value of
similar properties adjusted to reflect current market conditions
as of the end of the reporting period.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuations are reflective of the current market
conditions. Note 14 provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of investment properties.

Depreciation

The carry value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
as at 31 March 2017 was HK$179,602,000 (2016:
HK$229,057,000). The Group depreciates the property, plant
and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 3 to 25 years, or over the lease terms, after
taking into account their estimated residual value, commencing
from the date the property, plant and equipment is available
for use. The estimated useful lives and dates that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. If the estimated useful
life of property, plant and equipment did not reflect its actual
useful life, additional depreciation may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group looks for
other appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurement.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Notes 14 and 28c provide detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Revenue and Segment Information

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing of
household electrical appliance. Revenue of the Group are sales
of household electrical appliance.

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on geographical regions.

The Group is currently organised into four operating divisions
— Europe sales, Asia sales, America sales and other regions
sales. The information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance is based on these operating
divisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017
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Revenue and Segment Information 5. EXHNTEHER
(Continued)

Segment Revenues and Results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and
results for each of the reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2017

Segment revenue (Note a)

Segment profit

Other gains and losses (except net
foreign exchange loss)

Depreciation (except moulds)

Gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs on bank loans

Unallocated income and expenses,
net (Note b)

Profit before tax

DEEEE (Hita)

7 # A

HisB A R ER
NEBRFBIRIN)

& (RARIN)

RENEZNTEED
FEEN BN

UBERRTER

ADRBARRSFE
(Hito)

KRBT A

THMERBRER
ATHREAEBRAIZRNEED
B8 S 2 e MR AB R 2 AT -

BE—_E—t+tF=F=+—HIFE

Europe Asia America  Other regions  Consolidated
BOM [+ EY)| Hit & &8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEx FET FET

(Note a)

655,338 332,578 301,632 35,534 1,325,082
60,079 30,490 27,652 3,258 121,479
(111)

(55,683)

8,800

(676)

10,416

84,225
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

e MRS EME

HE_T—tF=-A=1T—"HIFE

5. EXHRIHBER =)

Segment Revenues and Results (Continued) DENEEENEE (Z)
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE_FE—NNF=ZH=1—HIFE
Europe Asia America  Other regions ~ Consolidated
BN M el HiihE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note a)
Segment revenue (Note a) AWERE (Hita) 812,435 394,762 311,248 46,880 1,565,325
Segment profit aR=0iayil 56,922 27,658 21,807 3,285 109,672
Other gains and losses (except net Hin 25 % EE
foreign exchange loss) (SNEBBFERM) (252)
Depreciation (except moulds) e (EARIN) (64,192)
Loss from changes in fair value of RENE 2 ATHES
investment properties FTEERER (6,000)
HERERBAZH
Gain on sale and leaseback arrangement FREEZBF 110,788
Finance costs on bank loans BBERBRITER (959)
Unallocated income and expenses, AARBA KR F5E
net (Note b) (HiEb) (6,045)
Profit before tax B 5t Al A1 143,012
Note a: The allocation of segment revenue is determined based on Mlata: DEEXTEND ERELH
destinations of shipment of products. B B E’]iﬂgﬁﬁﬁ&m °
Note b: Unallocated income and expenses represented other Biatb : ROBWA R LR EEmUA
income, central administration costs and directors’ salaries. RRTHRERRESSS -
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating AE2RREENH ST HEELRE
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies et ERAR (HAmRMES) -
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit DEHEMR K BT — 2 EBEATRINA &

earned by each segment without allocation of other income,
central administration cost and directors’ salaries, other gains
and losses (except net foreign exchange loss), depreciation
(except moulds), gain (loss) from changes in fair value of
investment properties and finance costs on bank loans and
gain on sale and leaseback arrangement. This is the measure
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017

5. Revenue and Segment Information

(Continued)

Segment Assets and Liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’ assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment:

Segment Assets

Europe

Asia

America
Other regions

Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets designated as FVTPL

Short-term deposits

Bank balances and cash

Investment properties

Plant, equipment and machinery
(except moulds)

Club debentures

Other receivables

Tax recoverable

Other unallocated assets (Note)

Consolidated assets

e MBREEME

HE—T—

TtHFE=A=+—"HILFE

5. EXHRIHBER =)

PTHMEERERE
AT AEBERAIZRREEDHD
MEERBEER:
T EEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
B 180,856 204,444
CEN) 95,010 104,393
=M 75,359 74,096
Hibip[E 10,017 12,226
DEBEE 361,242 395,159
ROBEE
AHEERE 25,558 19,569
EREBEREAFEFEZ
MG EE 1,920 3,495
= HTE R 213,362 305,732
WITHEFRES 517,924 424,879
TEY 250,800 242,000
W5 - 52 2
(R EBRIN) 175,054 222,228
2RES 13,176 13,866
E A & Y BR 5K 22,157 29,918
FEAR T I8 1,441 11,695
HEMARDBEEE (Ha) 25,550 25,645
HEBE 1,608,184 1,694,186

Note: Other unallocated assets comprised prepaid lease payments

and deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment.

Hise -

Ht R B EERFERNHEERR
RENBEDE BEEREBZF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_ZT—tF=A=+—HILFE
5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. EXHN T EER »)
(Continued)
Segment Assets and Liabilities (Continued) PHEEREE (£)
Segment Liabilities S HEE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Europe B 20,337 14,042
Asia s M 10,030 6,379
America E 9,754 5,723
Other regions H At b [= 1,092 775
Segment liabilities (Note) DEBEE (K1) 41,213 26,919
Unallocated liabilities Aol afE
Trade payables FERE SRR 188,658 200,717
Other payables and accruals LA FE S BR 3R R B A AR AT 122,885 133,242
Deferred income P IE WA 36,901 56,153
Secured liabilities loans BEBIRITER 46,533 57,205
Tax liabilities MIBEE 40,734 33,261
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAEE 13,069 12,855
Consolidated liabilities LEAaE 489,993 520,352
Note: Segment liabilities represented mould deposits received by each Kz nPaEES—H»HEWERRT
segment. & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

e MBREEME

BE

5.

5. Revenue and Segment Information

(Continued)

Information about Major Customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

Customer A (Europe, Asia, America and ZEA CBOM - Z2M -
Other regions) M R E A= )
Customer B (Europe, Asia, America and EEB (BOM - M
Other regions) EMREMME)
Customer C (Europe, Asia, America and ERC (BN M-
Other regions) oM R B M b [ )
Customer D (Europe, Asia and Other regions) & FD (BUM - 25 M &
Hipib )
Customer E (Europe, Asia, America and ZPEE (BUM - M
Other regions) EMREMME)

L The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Geographical Information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and PRC.

Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

Hong Kong 578
PRC #

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and club
debentures.
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EHEERDILER 2

FEEFHNEHR
7N 55 [ B[R] B R 3B 48 35 5 BB 10%3K A
EmEP M T

2017 2016
—2—tF —T-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
396,997 523,977
368,595 463,750
232,588 204,135

134,943 N/A! 38 A
133,422 N/A! 35

t EHEEEAE BB EEAHEE
"10% °

i & & R
NEE L EMB AT ENPE-

BRAAKREZERDEERENEE
B[R 251

2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
254,904 246,367
200,371 250,335
455,275 496,702

Hiat: ERDEETBREEHMIARERE
B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

Other Segment Information
Year ended 31 March 2017

Europe Asia
B o
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx Tz

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:

FERBEEEM 755 346
ik 1,767 805

Additions to non-current assets
Depreciation

e MRS EME

BT

America
M
HKS000
FET

540
1,308

TtFE=A=+—"HILFE

EEHENRDTHER 2

HesHER
BE-—ZE—tF=ZF=1—HILFE
Other Total
regions segment  Unallocated ~Consolidated
Ethih B FHAR KB G8
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TEr Tz FET TEr

HEBEC B SR EN D B A k&
BHNEEE-

20,009
55,683

21,686
59,641

36 1,677
83 3,958

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets:

Interest income on bank BTERZFEMA

deposits - -
Interest income on MHHERE 2 FISRA

available-for-sale investments - -
Rental income HEBA - -

HHBEFHRTEIEEERREAL
BEAEERFEND B G KEEK
DEBEE °

= = 2,612 2,612
= = 398 398
= = 4,517 4,517
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—t&F=HA=+—HItFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. EXH R MBER »)

(Continued)
Other Segment Information (Continued) HeadHEs (&
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-_F—NF=HA=+—HIFE
Other Total
Europe Asia America regions segment  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BOM T EM HitiiE PEAE RAR )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FBL T T TH T TBT
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or HEBEEBESRE 2R D 0%k E1E
segment assets: HOHEE °
Additions to non-current assets ~ JEREIEEE N 2,121 865 1,212 82 4,280 12,097 16,377
Depreciation wE 1,996 830 1,086 83 3,995 64,190 68,185
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision GEREEHIEEAETEEERETAL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BREERFTEMN D %= EEzk D
loss or segment assets: HEE-
Interest income on bank deposits ST 302 FIEMA - - - - - 4418 4,418
Interest income on MEHEREZFIBHA
available-for-sale investments = = = = = 328 328
Rental income AglA - - - - - 5,601 5,601
6. Other Income 6. Hftlg A
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Rental income He A 4,517 5,601
Interest on bank deposits RITFF) &2 2,612 4,418
Amortisation of deferred income PR AE WA 2 51 19,252 1,604
Building management fee income BFEEBRA 658 853
Scrap sales $H 5 BE 502 446
Interest on available-for-sale investments AHHEREZHE 398 328
Others H A, 1,003 170
28,942 13,420
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017

7. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and

Employees’ Emoluments

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ and executive’s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2017

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Note 2)

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
(Note 3)

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie

Mr. Cheung Pui

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William
(Note 4)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Cheung Lun (Note 5)

INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita

Total

HITES
RETREL (Hi2)
REY &t (Hi23)

REHLL

RIERE
REEBL (i)

FUTES

Rim kL (Hits)
BYFHTES
REALE

REEEL

k]
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e MRS EME

E-T—

TtFE=A=+—"HILFE

7. E5 FETBRAERES
<=

(@ EZ=M<
FARBIERAN ETHRAEA
AEPIBBENESREZTHA
BHMEmT -
Bz —_F—+tF=F=1+—Hi
FE
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fee other benefits Bonus contribution Total
§E&R BANER
ik 2t g R AL g REE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 1)
(Hrit1)
- 2,658 2,804 269 5,731
- 1,428 322 146 1,896
- 1,646 338 165 2,149
- 1,342 261 132 1,735
- 808 264 69 1,141
- 2,615 589 - 3,204
120 - - - 120
120 10,497 4,578 781 15,976




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  42& B FE 3R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E—E—tF=A=1+—HLFE

7. EE -FETHAEBREER
M =)

(@ EE=M< (&)

7. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE—FE—NF=H=1—HI

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fee  other benefits Bonus contribution Total
Hek RNEF
e H g TE4T HEES B
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 1)
(Hiit1)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS YTES
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Note 2)  SREIEB LA (H1it2) - 2,791 2,216 269 5,276
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie ~ REB® &+ (#f:3)

(Note 8 - 1,460 273 146 1,879
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie REH LT = 1,655 310 165 2,130
Mr. Cheung Pui RIERE - 1,306 248 132 1,686
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ~ ¥#H{TEZE
Mr. Cheung Lun (Note 5) Riw L& (f1i25) - 3,005 563 - 3,568
INDEPENDENT NON- BUYFHTES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon BHEAR A 120 - - - 120
Professor Lo Chung Mau EREHE - - - - -
Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita BEEEL - - - - -
Total B 120 10,217 3,610 712 14,659
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

7. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

)

The performance related incentive payment is determined
with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Group.

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is also the managing director of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the managing
director.

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie was appointed as
Chairman on 17 March 2017.

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, Wiliam was appointed as the
executive director of the Company on 28 September
2016.

Mr. Cheung Lun was re-designated as non-executive
director of the Company and appointed as the honorary
chairman of the Company on 17 March 2017.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-
executive director’'s emoluments shown above was for his
service as director of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of HK$120,000
(2016: HK$120,000) for the year ended 31 March
2017. Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita waived her fees of
HK$120,000 (2016: HK$120,000) for the year ended 31
March 2017. The Chairman, managing director and no

other director waived any emoluments for both years.
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7. EE -FETHAEBREER
M =)

E=ME (#)

(a)

Hrat

(1)

SRR RS THIR B AE I A
TREBRIRE

RERELENMRARBZES
mgE R LR EIME T
BREMESRHEESEEER
BZER-

REBEZTR_T—tF=A
TLHEZRERER-

R ERER T —RFENA
“+tN\BEEXER/ERRRMNIT
5%

RMEER T —+tF=A
TERRAERRRARFNTE
2 URERERKELRFE-

EIRTEEME RREEH
BEEARAAREAKEEHNR
o LOIERTEEME AE
BERBARBRENE AR
FH5 o LB IEHNTTE F
EEER/WERBARDA -

EEEHERNEZE-_Z—tF=
A=+—BILMEEHREI12BH
T (ZTE—R"F:128F7T) B
ZEBLIREBE-_T—+E=A
=+t —HIEREEHRRI2EST
—E—RNF12BBL)  RE
HthES FEREFHALENR
ZEEMFHOME-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

7. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(b)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included five directors (2016: four directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2016 are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 27| - 3285 & 2 ) 1) %5

i

Performance related bonuses EA R IR HMAIEAT
Retirement benefits RIRTEF
Sub-total INET

The remuneration of the highest paid employee who is
not the directors of the Company fell within the band
from HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000.

e MBREEME

BE_ZT—t+tF=A=+—HIFE

7. EE -FETHAEBREER
M =)

(b)

EEME
FRAEBRANGERTFSEER
BRAZESE(ZZ—X"F: 0%
EE) AUAMSFRBRER X
HE_ZT—R"F=A=+—8H1L
MEERN BT —RBIERAQAE
E FETHRAENESHESR
B E BN EES 2T -

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZRA=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E-tF —FAF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

= 1,373

= 264

- 137

= 1,774
ZERRREENREHZEES

B - N F 150817 2008 78 7T
EED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

8. Other Gains and Losses

e MRS EME

HE—Z—t+t&=A=+—HItFE

8. HBFNRERE

2017 2016
—E—ifF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net foreign exchange loss SNERTEF R (1,715) (2,959)
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE  BE KRB 2R
plant and equipment 37 100
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y1 - BB KRR R (428) (163)
Cumulative loss reclassified from other Eo AR ERENRTER
comprehensive income to profit or loss on REMEZERSHETSE
redemption of available-for-sale investments Z 18z K (30) (47)
Net gain (loss) from changes in fair value of ~ FiBIBFHRIE A F(ETE 2
financial assets designated at FVTPL MG EEC AT EE
FEENAN (BE)FHE 315 (140)
Others HAD, (5) @)
(1,826) (3,211)
9. Gain on Sale and Leaseback 9.

Arrangement/Deferred Income

On 13 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) to dispose of a property, namely, all that 12th
Floor of Zung Fu Industrial Building, No. 1067 King’'s Road,
Hong Kong (the “Property”), with a carrying amount of
HK$9,212,000 at a cash consideration of HK$179,000,000.
The fair value of the Property at the date of disposal was
approximately HK$120,000,000 based on the valuation
carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional surveyor not connected with the Group.

RHL Appraisal Ltd. is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The fair value was determined based on the direct
comparison method assuming sales of each of the properties
in its existing state and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence of similar nature properties available in the
relevant market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  42& B FE 3R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE
9. Gain on Sale and Leaseback 9.
Arrangement/Deferred Income
(Continueqd)

In addition, pursuant to the agreement, upon completion of
the transaction, the Group continues to occupy the property
by entering into a tenancy agreement with the Purchaser in
respect of the Property for three years commencing from the
date of completion, 3 March 2016. This sale and leaseback
transaction resulted in an operating lease.

Since the sales price of the Property is above its fair value,
the excess over fair value of HK$57,757,000 is deferred and
amortised over the lease period of three years. During the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Group recognised gain on sale and
leaseback arrangement of HK$110,788,000 (2017: nil).

Movement in deferred income in current year was as follows:

T tF=HA=1+—HIFE

HEREROBELZHRE
£ BR,CEEWA )

AN RBEEOHE BT HE
AEEEE SRR L —BAEL
HEHS=F BARHxKA BI=F
—ANFZAZHEF -BREERER
AR SHREEHRE-

MRZYEZHEBERNERTE
FBBES,7TTSBRTAB T ATFTEERME
EN="FAREREHE REBEE-F
—~NEZA=t+—HI  AEBE®ER
ZHERERBBELZHMELEZ BT
R1E1,078E8F BT (ZE— L F:
) o

HEREERBARHERES 220
T~

HK$000
FET
Deferred income at the time of disposal R SR ZEERA 57,757
Credit to profit or loss JiEi=Ey Ik (1,604)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—R"E=ZA=1+—H 56,153
Credit to profit or loss 18 25 [B] B (19,252)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=H=+—H 36,901
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred income analysed for BEEWAEERA G2
reporting purposes as: DT
Non-current assets ERBEE 17,649 36,901
Current assets MEEE 19,252 19,252
36,901 56,153

Annual Report 2016/2017 —ZE—~EZ_F—tFFH

105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017

10.Income Tax Expense

Current tax:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Overprovision in prior years:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Deferred tax (note 25):
Current year

REFEHIA:
BB
FEMEMAEH

BEFEBERME:

o
FEMEMAEH

BIERLIE (HiE25)

REE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for

both years.
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10. A8 BB

2017 2016
—g—tF —T-AF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
6,472 3,811
5,798 7,578
12,270 11,389
(717) (1,025)
(489) (2,924)
(1,206) (3,949)

214 (84)
11,278 7,356

M EFE 2 BB FEH I A G ER

Tt i K $216.5% 2 Fi R 5t &

)

RBHBELEMETOE (TFBE]) K
BEMHBAAR - EMEHBARZA

EEEABMRR25% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—t&F=HA=+—HItFE

10. FRB BB (@)

AN B 2 BB A 8 8 2 928 R
R RERER N Z BBADEFIT ¢

10.Income Tax Expense (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Profit before tax B ¢ B g A 84,225 143,012

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits BB BNERT%E16.5%

Tax rate of 16.5% 13,897 23,697
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R HR 2 7 S S A TR R 2

for tax purpose 1,868 1,763
Tax effect of income not taxable BB 2 WA H T IER 2

for tax purpose (5,220) (19,947)

Effect of different tax rates in the PRC RABKETRB R 2 2 2,709 4,351

Overprovision in respect of prior years BEFEREREG (1,206) (3,949)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBEEE 2 ZE 29 1,983
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ZAIAMERMIBER 28

recognised (787) (161)

Withholding tax on undistributed earnings RO BEEN 2 FEHT 756 654

Others HAf (768) (935)

Tax charge for the year KREFHRIAS H 11,278 7,356
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_ZT—tF=A=+—HILFE
. \\LL
11. Profit for the Year 1. RFEERF
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived REERNE MR N5 5IE -
at after charging:
Staff salaries and allowances 8 T #r P 28k 254,700 295,809
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes R K 4@ £l 51 2l (i 7% 22,121 23,865
Total staff costs, including directors’ BWETHRA (BIEEEHE)
emoluments 276,821 319,674
Depreciation for property, plant and M- BEREZBITE
equipment 59,641 68,185
Direct outgoings in relation to rental income  BEE W AN EEZ S H 795 784
Release of prepaid lease payments R TE A E IR 677 704
Auditor’s remuneration % ERRD BN 2,205 2,165
12.Dividends 12. B &
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of FANERRRETARAZ
the Company recognised as distribution LB R 2 IR B
during the year
2017 interim dividend of HK2.0 cents T+ FHERE
(2016: 2016 interim dividend of BR2.08 1 (ZF —7"4F:
HK1.5 cents) per share —E-—RFHREKE
1.5%11) 6,709 5,032
2016 final dividend of HK5.5 cents —E-REREKE
(2016: 2015 final dividend of HK7.5 cents) BRR5.58 1 (ZF —7R4F -
per share —E-RFREKE
7.5744l) 18,449 25,157
2016 special dividend of HK28 cents ZE—NFRRIRE
(2015: nil) per share & R8Il
(ZBE—HF #E) 93,921 -
119,079 30,189
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—t&F=HA=+—HItFE

12.Dividends (Continued) 12.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK10.5 cents per share in respect of the year ended 31
March 2017 (2016: final dividend of HK5.5 cents per share
and a special dividend of HK28.0 cents per share in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2016), in aggregate amount of
HK$35,220,000 (2016: HK$112,370,000) has been proposed
by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. The
final divided is expected to be paid on 15 September 2017 to
shareholders whose name appear on the Register of Members
of the Company on 25 August 2017.

13. Earnings per Share 13.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

RE )

RERERERE  NARIZESTERIR
BEE_ZT—+F=A=1+—HIHF
EARBREFR1058I (=T —7N:
HE-_Z—XEFZA=1+—BHLLEE
AR B AT 58I KRR E
FRE28E ) « 84 58 53,5228 B T
(ZE—R"F:1181,2378/8T) - tiE
mIRE KRR B ARG ARARRE
BN RIT 2 RS E#E - WIEES
RZE—tFENATHEBEFTR=
T—+FNAZT+RHHERBIANRDFR
REMARE -

BREF

BRADEARAEAANELRETNZ

STETIRENATER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings REBRERERN M S 2 &7H
per share (Profit for the year attributable to (REER DELEARN T

owners of the Company) wEANZ &)

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of FLERERZEFI M= 2
basic earnings per share LB EE

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both
years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue.

72,947 135,656

Number of shares

ROHE
2017 2016
—E—tF TR REF
‘000 ‘000
F T
335,433 335,433

EMFRERERTEEHES LB
UL IR B I S REER R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

e MRS EME

HE

A FEA=T—HIEFE

14.Investment Properties 14, REW
2017 2016
—E—ifF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value NS
Balance at beginning of year FE A 242,000 248,000
Gain (loss) from changes in fair values N EZEFTEENET
recognised in profit or loss (B RNEBEERER 8,800 (6,000)
Balance at end of year FRER 250,800 242,000
Unrealised gain (loss) on property revaluation 2t ABZEAKEF (FEE) 2
included in profit or loss AERYEEHZF 8,800 (6,000)

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals are measured using fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties. These
investment properties are office units and car parking spacing
located in Hong Kong.
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BE_ZT—t+tF=A=+—HIFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

14. REY%E »)

14. Investment Properties (continuea)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2017 and 31 March 2016 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by RHL
Appraisal Ltd., a firm of independent qualified professional
surveyor not connected to the Group.

The valuation of the investment properties, which falls under
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, has been arrived at by using
direct comparison method by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best
use of the property is their current use.

The key inputs used in valuing the office units is market
unit rate of comparable properties and adjusted for size,
view and floor level of property and timing of comparable
transactions. The weighted average market unit rate adopted
is HK$20,847 per square foot (2016: HK$20,254 per square
foot). A significant increase in market unit rate would result in
a significant increase in the fair value and vice versa. The key
inputs used in valuing car park spacing is consideration for
comparable transaction adjusted for timing of the comparable
transaction and accessibility of the car park spacing.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.

All of the Group’s investment properties have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

R-F—tHE=A=+—AR=-F—X
E=A=t—B FEEREWEZD
FEA—RBUEWB OB LA AR
B {TAKITTHHERA AR A RIE it B
BT

BEMEL EE IARTESRES
B EEDEETSRENET BT
8 & H AR B R DA E B LB
AT

fET ISR AT B RS R F
BEMERREEAAR -

FEARFEPAZELMDNES A BT
REMBHRTEREA LR 2 WEETT
&g wHEBRNER WEE 8-
BERRZHREELAE - NEFHT
BERAFFHR20,847%E T (ZF—~
& FF 5 R20,254%70) © i 5 B %
FEEN BERATFEMNBEEN K
ZNMAR-EARFEEESEMNEE
BWABBRENRERLE ZREAR
SRR RAEHEELFE-

RERE=ZFRLWLBEEARE L -

AEEMAREDFECERESLARE
BE—RRITEEHER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

e MRS EME

E-T—

TtFE=A=+—"HILFE

15. Y% -BMERRE

Furniture, Moulds
Leasehold Factory Plantand fixtures and and Motor  Construction
land Buildings buildings machinery  equipment tools vehicles in progress Total
WERE KR £E
HELH B3 IENE kK k% HEARIA RE EEIR &t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Notg) (Notg)
(Hit) (Hit)
COST KAME
At 1 April 2015 R=Z-1FMA-A 9,615 4,374 191,566 399,982 185,483 38,618 10,400 27 840,065
Exchange adjustments MEFE - - (5,582) (13,810) (5,864) (76) (169) (17) (25,518)
Additions AE - - - 5,948 3,904 4,343 1,780 402 16,377
Disposals/write-off e/ - - - (5,143) (1,398) (19) (2,641) - (9,193)
Disposal under sale and BELERE®R
Leaseback arrangement ERZH (9,490) (3,355) - - - - - - (12,845)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-REF
and 1 April 2016 ZA=t-Hk
MA—H 125 1,019 185,984 386,977 182,127 42,872 9,370 412 808,886
Exchange adjustments INEHE - - (7,815) (18,860) (8,159) (86) (237) (397) (35,554)
Additions AE - - - 3,288 2,970 1,754 1,060 12,614 21,686
Disposals/write-off HE/ - - - (7,009) (1,368) (30) (785) - (9,192)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF
ERET=6 125 1,019 178,169 364,396 175,570 44,510 9,408 12,629 785,826
DEPRECIATION ik}
At 1 April 2015 R-E-hEMA-A 275 4,374 67,146 293,655 136,603 31,633 6,067 - 539,753
Exchange adjustments MERRE - - (1,396) (10,026) (4,420) (39) (121) - (16,002)
Provided for the year REERE 8 - 7,547 32,314 22,766 4,180 1,370 - 68,185
Eliminated on disposals/write-off 1% /i B4 35 - - - (4,946) (1,363) (13) 2,152) - (8,474)
Eliminated on disposal REHERER
under sale and Epiikezdsgin |
leaseback arrangement (278) (8,355) - - - - - - (3,633)
At 31 March 2016
and 1 April 2016
5 1,019 73,297 310,997 153,586 35,761 5,164 - 579,829
Exchange adjustments INERE - - (2,245) (15,133) (6,919) (80) (190) - (04,561)
Provided for the year REEEE - - 7,257 29,635 17,31 4,112 1,326 - 59,641
Eliminated on disposals/write-off 1% /{4 B4 24 - - - (6,586) (1,369) (30) (706) - (8,685)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF
ERET=6 5 1,019 78,309 318913 162,621 39,763 5,594 - 606,224
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2017 RZE—t&
=A=t+-A 120 - 99,860 45,483 12,949 4,747 3814 12,629 179,602
At 31 March 2016 RZE-—RF
=A=t+-A 120 - 112,687 75,980 28,541 7,111 4,206 412 229,057
Note: The buildings situated in the leasehold land had been fully Kiit: REEXTHHAEE=E2NME B

depreciated but still in use by the Group. The leasehold land is
situated in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

15.

16.

Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

e MBREEME

BE-T LF=A=t+—AIL5R

15. ¥ -BERRKE 2

ERBEYE - BERKE (ERTE
BRON) 2 I ETHIR NI RERIRF

>t

Leasehold land HE T Over the lease terms
HAEHR
Buildings and factory buildings BERIRYE 4% or over the lease
term, if shorter
4% R TEEHA
MBREE
Plant and machinery iR 55 5% 8 Je 1 25 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment RE -RKEREZE 20 - 33"/5%
Moulds and tools HEANTA 20 - 33"/5%
Motor vehicles RE 20%
- =%
Prepaid Lease Payments 16. AT HERKE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land AEBZENEEREBSEMUNRES
outside Hong Kong. LASNZ T & L3 o
2017 2016
—E—+fF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EERAZ 2 DT
Non-current assets ERBEE 22,994 24,833
Current assets MENEE 677 704
23,671 25,537
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

17.Club Debentures

e MRS EME

HE—Z—t+t&=A=+—HItFE

17. S FfE S

HK$ 000
FET
CARRYING VALUE RREE

At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZE—RFHA—HK
—E—NRE=A=+—H 13,866
Disposal HE (690)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=HA=+—H 13,176
The club debentures with indefinite useful lives are tested for EHRMNEMESRSF 2 ERENR

impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment loss was identified with reference to
market value.

18. Available-For-Sale Investments

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Investment funds KEES

Debt securities BiEES

Analysed for reporting purposes as: EERA & 2 DT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Current assets MEEE

Investment in investment funds represent pool investments,
comprising equity and debts securities in various markets.
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ALERFRBRRESERE AR

AESRESEMSEE RRLEHE
EREEE

18. AL ERE
AHEERERR:

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

12,331 11,356

13,227 8,213

25,558 19,569

17,010 16,031

8,548 3,538

25,558 19,569

RENKRERES REKREHESG B

ERMEHNRERERE S5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  42& B FE 3R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—t&F=HA=+—HItFE
. . . Y S = N2 A A
19.Financial Assets Designated at 19. BRBEREAFETEZ
FVTPL MBEE
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Investment funds HEIRE 1,920 3,495
Investment in investment funds represent pool investments, RERESKRE BHEEREAS  BEE
comprising equity and debts securities in various markets HEMEHREREBESFLAHESH
and redeemable at the directors’ discretion. As at 31 March AREEBER -N_FT—tF=A=+—8"
2017, the directors of the Company intended to hold these ARAREESHAERAZRSREERARS
investments at least in the coming twelve months from the end HEREFEZLRETEA  WZE
of the reporting period and therefore they are classified as non- BEDERIERBEE -
current assets.
4
20. 78
20. Inventories
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials JR# 29,733 28,106
Work in progress 2 M@ 18,688 16,503
Finished goods BIFK Gh 39,789 29,980
88,210 74,589
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  %x
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BHZE

21.Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables

Trade receivables U E 5 8RR

Bills receivable e W = #&

Other receivables (Note) o Ath JE AR B (B aE)

Total trade and other receivables U E 5 BR R R EoAth
& U BR FX 4B KE

Note: As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s other receivables mainly
include value added tax recoverable of HK$11,519,000 (2016:
HK$19,577,000), which will be repayable within one year.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and
bills receivable, presented based on the invoice date which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates.

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H
> 120 days BiE120H
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BUBRE S

T tF=-HA=1t—HIFE

/Eﬂﬂ W,EE/TA

2017 2016

—E—tF —F-REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET F BT

253,179 300,729

1,010 -

254,189 300,729

22,157 29,918

276,346 330,647

Kz R=E—tF=A=+—H X&
E’Jﬁmﬁu&zﬁﬁkz%@ﬁ 1518
IMF AL (ZE—/RF 11,9578 71T
PIT) 2 AT B ER K - R —
FrigE -

NTREKESERREREENRE
HUAZERERAER ZRE ST KA

B eEAERBE-
2017 2016
—E 5 —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FETT
242,740 283,211
8,861 17,518
2,588 =
254,189 300,729




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  42& B FE 3R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E—E—tF=A=1+—HLFE

21. EWE 5 IR K ERRE

21.Trade Receivables and Bills

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continueqd)

The Group maintains defined credit period of up to 90 days.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the repayment
history of receivables by each customer with reference to
the payment terms stated in contracts. In determining the
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. In the
opinion of directors of the Company, the trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired were of good credit quality
based on good repayment history at the end of the reporting
period and no impairment is necessary for these balances.

As at 31 March 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables and bills receivable balance are debtors with
aggregated carrying amount of approximately HK$18,792,000
(2016: HK$21,595,000) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
as there has not been significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Age of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

Overdue by: BHR
1- 90 days 1-90H
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H
> 120 days HEiE1208

S HAEWBRSR ()

REE R AREREEHEOR - REN
ERHEF AKEBEHEEERPZ
EEEAEREEEPRAEEERE 1o
REBE2E QLTI 2 N FIERR B S
EFEREBRYFELZLE SEEBEE
WEZERFIREENHERBRERZE
EEZARANE NETRKE SR
AT EE - RI|ER - RRABESR
B ERNREL R BKE ZERE
EEER WEBESCRIE B
HERXTREBRE -

R_ZTE—+tFE=Zf=+—H AEEE
KEZEFRERERBEERTDES &
1,8798 28T (ZZF — /X4 : 2,15985
FHBTT) 2 FEWERR - Z R WwE B 5
EEEEYEEL REEBEREE B
BEEZWIERNRE  FKE R ZK
T8 2 ] 4R (8 o 7N 62 3 3 4 3t 5% 55 BR R
B EAERG o

EEHE I ER(E 2 FEUE 5 AR E

2017 2016
— ZTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
17,342 21,551
1,135 44

315 =

18,792 21,595
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

22.Short-term Deposits/Bank Balances
and Cash

(@) Short-term deposits
Short-term deposits are deposits placed with banks or
financial institution for investment purpose. The short-
term deposits carry fixed interest rates with effective
interest rates ranging from 0.03 % to 9% (2016: 0.01%
to 8%) per annum.

(b) Bank balances and cash

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0% to 0.3% (2016: 0% to 0.3%) per annum.

23.Trade Payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date.

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H
> 120 days HBiB120H
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e MRS EME

E=F—tE=A=t—ALFE

4= —=

22. BHAER RITHES
®1z

(a)

(b)

BHER
RBAGRERERRITH S B
BAREEN - LNEHAERA
KK E A B F B H0.03%
F9% (ZE—ARNF:0.01%=E
8%) °

BRITEENRS
RITHEGEMISHBERFTE F
BHI0%E03% (2T — /K&
0%Z0.3%) °

23. ENE Z R
BIEZZEHHRIZENESERERZ
BREC D ATAA T ¢

2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—R5F
HK$’000 HK$'000

F BT FAET
183,779 169,911
4,009 27,397

870 3,409
188,658 200,717




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z

BUBRESHE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—t&F=HA=+—HItFE
/= =%
24.Secured Bank Loans 24, BEFRITER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Secured bank loans, with carrying amount BHEMRITER
repayable (Note): EAER 7 REE (A7)
Within one year —FKR 5,124 5,124
Within a period of more than one year ZR—F BT BBEMRE
but not exceeding two years SN 5,124 5,124
Within a period of more than two years ZRME BTNBRERT
but not exceeding five years HAE A 15,372 15,372
Within a period of more than five years AELA EERA 20,913 26,037
46,533 51,657
Carrying amount of bank loans that contain ~ $R1ITERE S BRKEBIER 2
a repayment on demand clause but REEER—FAEE
repayable within one year - 5,548
46,533 57,205
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B BRSO @JAEZ
under current liabilities —FNERLR (5,124) (10,672)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilites 7 BRAIETR B BB 2 £ 5 41,409 46,533
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set Bt EHERSBERERERBER

out in the loan agreements.

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus 0.8% (2016: 1-month HIBOR plus a range of
0.8% to 2.75%) per annum. As at 31 March 2017, the effective
interest rate on the Group’s borrowing is 1.25% per annum
and the effective interest rates as at 31 March 2016 were
ranging from 1.26% to 2.97% per annum.

As at 31 March 2017, banks loan of HK$46,533,000 (2016:
HK$57,205,000) is secured by the Group’s investment
properties with a fair value approximately HK$250,800,000
(2016: HK$242,000,000) (note 14).

Annual Report

HERBH-

RITEREZHNERZ2EE F8
REBRITRAERE (—@EA )buo.s%
(ZE2E—RF - BAARITRAERE (—
& B ) h10.8%E2.75% ) - A — & —
F=A=+—H &K 1ﬁgiﬂfﬁz
1.25% HR_F—"F=A=1+—8"
EREEFNENREARFE1.26%E
2.97% °

R-BE—+FE=A=+—8 HRITEXK
4,6538B3FHBTL (ZF—71%F :5,72085
FALT) T BREEEEMENRAFELNR
2{85,0808 47T (ZF —7<4F : 2184,200
BB TC) IEER (H5E14) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

25. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—ARFMA—H

(Credit) charge to profit or loss Rz (B 7R

At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZZT—RF
=ZA=+t—H8kK
—E—XREWMA—H

(Credit) charge to profit or loss Ri8as (B #8) R

At 31 March 2017 R-ZZE—tF
=R=+—8

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$80,470,000 (2016: HK$100,202,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assets has been recognised in respect of these tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future project streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$75,301,000 (2016: HK$95,029,000) that will be fully expire
in 2020 (2016: expiring in 2020). Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law in the PRC and implementation regulations
issued by the State Council, withholding tax at 10% or a lower
treaty rate is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has been fully provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries.
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mEMBRES

—tF=A=t—HILFE

BHEZZT

25 EEFIEEE

TIREFERZAFED THER
TEREHERGURER 2EE):

LDES:

Withholding
tax on
distributable
Accelerated profit of
tax subsidiaries
depreciation in PRC Total
AL PN
Al 7 B A 2
MEHERE EB weE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T TE7T
6,332 6,607 12,939
(738) 654 (84)
5,594 7,261 12,855
(542) 756 214
5,052 8,017 13,069

RARERR  AEE AR FABIEEE
8,047&E B (Z T — /N F : 118208 21F
V7T ) AT HE SH AR AR ) - 5 B LATE TE R 2K
i U RO+ BT A S A 2R {50 FR R TE I R 1 R
BEEE-BEEAERAREEREALY
7,530 1TA& L (ZF—7~F 1 9,502&9
FAET)EE SR_E_ZF 2355
(ZE—RNFHFR-_ZE_ZFRH)-

H b 5518 AT RE EERR B4 EE o

RIBEF B EEAEHAR - b B
P BRI K —FFTNF—A
—BF% AP ENB R R PSR FE
ik 3 2 BB - LA10 % 89 TR M 3 sk BUR
M ERXBKR - BEEATEMBLRZR
AAMENEREEEMSHREREAS
RIFB P B mRERATDIEM -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017

26. Share Capital

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:
At beginning and end of the year

Issued and fully paid
At beginning and end of the year

e MBREEME

(E_F—tF=A=+—HILFE

26. IR A

2017 & 2016 2017 & 2016
“E—tHFR ZZE—tER
—E—-REF —E—-REF
Number of
shares HK$ 000
RIDEE FE T
% 25 TE {H0.107% 7T 2 & @A
JETE MR :
REY) J F 45 600,000,000 60,000
BT RBRRA
REY) J F4ER 335,432,520 33,543

27.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank loans disclosed in note 24, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

27. EXRERERE

AEEEEEN FEBRRASEER
ARSEELELE WEBBLEKK
BaFESRRERKRAL®R KK
BeBERBAEFUR-—BEERTT

## o

AEBZEARBEREBRER 28
RITEFRHFT24RE - FRERR S
FERARBEBARIE#ELD ETE
EEBRITRA R REBEN -

ARRIEFRFERISEARB-EF
EREARARESBENEBRRIE
RERZ BN -REEFHNER
SERE B BT BT
HMESXELRAER A FEELERE
BRRIE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I&3RE /st

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—tH&=A=1+—HILFE

28. Financial Instruments 28. €E T B

a. Categories of financial instruments a. SEIAEH
2017 2016
—E—+tHF AN
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Financial assets MK EE

Loans and receivables B RR i Uk BR 3R

(including cash and cash equivalents) (BRASEREEE)

Available-for-sale investments A HERE

Financial assets designated at FVTPL ~ #@ERFEAFEAE 2
BT & E

Financial liabilities i =R

Financial liabilities at amortised cost P a EHHEKA

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets
designated at FVTPL, trade receivables and bills
receivable, other receivables, short-term deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables and
secured bank loans. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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997,779 1,051,960

25,558 19,569

1,920 3,495

235,488 260,507
MEEREEREEREE

AEEZTESRTABREH#
HERE BEBaRAFER
BZHMBEE BRESERALK
FEW R - EAh BRI - FEETF
P RITEHRLERE  BNE SR
FoEMBEMERRNREEM 2R
TER-ZFeRMIAFBERE
MERE -ZFe TAMERER
REemmEEk (BEERR  FX
Rk R EAERRR) EERER
ERBE 2R - T XS
EZERBRcBRR - BEEEERE
R EEEZF AR AR R F A
M PREUE & 2 i o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017

28. Financial Instruments (continueq)

e MBREEME

(E_F—tF=A=+—HILFE

28. T B (»)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HXBEKMEEBEEZEREE (£)
(Continued)
Market risk 7% B g
Currency risk E 1 E
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign RN FA ERE M B R B AN e
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the Group TEE  FEBEZINERR - R
to foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the WMEMERB  AEBAINE ST
Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets B EBEEREYAE RE
and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period (ERUENE
are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=F BE
2017 2016 2017 2016
“2—+tF T —RF ZB—+tF —T—KRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
United States dollar (‘USD”) £ 11,654 20,136 557,783 519,322
Euro (“EUR’) BL 7 11 284 4 5
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR - = 52,915 136,320
HK$ BT - 63 713,647 623,444
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuations of USD, HK$ and RMB against the functional
currency of respective group entities, which is either
HK$ or RMB. As the USD will only vary between
HK$7.75=USD1.00 and HK$7.85=USD1.00 under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, the management of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group’s exposure
to USD relative to HK$ is minimal and accordingly, no
foreign currency sensitivity analysis on USD is presented.

AEBEBEAZETL - BITEA
REEHLSSEEBREE:
BB T A RE 2 B XK ER
S HRBBEEXRHE - ETR
ER7.7587T=1.00% T K% 7.858
JT=1.00% T2 HEs  EEER
RASEEZTRABRMBHRBEITR
1K B )8 B B ETTIEINE U
EDHe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B FE 3R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E_T—+tF=A=+—HIFE
28. Financial Instruments (continued) 28. €@t T B ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group has only minimal transactions in EUR
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. In
management’s opinion, the Group has no significant
currencies risk on EUR at the year end and no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 3% (2016: 3%) increase and decrease in functional
currency of respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. These percentages are the
sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 3% (2016: 3%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive (negative) number below indicates
an increase (decrease) in post-tax profit where the
functional currencies of respective group entities weaken
3% against the foreign currencies. A 3% (2016: 3%)
strengthening of the functional currencies of respective
group entities against the relevant currencies, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

124 Allan International Holdings Limited = faEFR @A R A 7

MERREZEEEREE (&)

mSmEE (F)

E¥mEE (&)

FRREDT (&)
REBREVEBER HEAS
EEGIINERR -BEEERA
MENFEHAEELRFER
MEEER SOREERRED
A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  42& B FE 3R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_T—+tF=A=+—HULFE
28. Financial Instruments (continueq) 28. €T A (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HXBEKMEEBEEZEREE (£)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) e E k()
Currency risk (Continued) B (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BREDN (&)
Impact of HK$ Impact of RMB
BT E ARMHE
2017 2016 2017 2016

ZE—+F —T—RF ZE—tF T F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET

Profit or loss for the year AEGF /BB 16,057 14,026 1,326 3,415

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to short- L EREFERMAMELEA

term deposits, outstanding receivables and payables and 52 ERTE 3K B WO M AR 3k e R AT

intergroup receivables and payables the year end. BR SR M 55 [ 7 50 e Wi K FE T BR 3R
B [ Bz o

Interest rate risk Tl 2] 2

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in AEERTEERREBATERAZATFE

relation to fixed-rate short-term deposits. (ERYES e

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk AEEz2EERER (LEXRF

in relation to variable-rate secured bank loans (see note 15 R 5E24) RIRTTA B IRTT

24 for details of these loans) and bank balances. FEHNEAXREE S ER
S o

AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

28. Financial Instruments (continued) 28. €@t T B ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

MERREZEEEREE (&)

Market risk (Continued) e E ()
Interest rate risk (Continued) FIFEE b (&)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the secured bank
loans outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis point
(2016: 10 basis point) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point (2016: 10 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2017 would decrease/increase by HK$39,000
(2016: decrease/increase by HK$48,000). This is
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its secured bank loans.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and credit
risk through its unlisted debt investments and unlisted
investment funds classified as available-for-sale
investments and designated at FVTPL. The management
considers these risks are insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis on such risks has been prepared.
However, the management will closely monitor such
exposures and consider hedging such exposures should
the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017

28. Financial Instruments (continueaq)

e MBREEME

(E_F—tF=A=+—HILFE

28. T B (»)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March 2017 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and the Group has
been largely dependent on a small number of customers
for a substantial portion of its business. The top three
customers represent over 84% (2016: 91%) of the
trade receivables at 31 March 2017. The failure of these
customers to make required payment could have a
substantial negative impact on the Group’s profits and
liquidity.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of
the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances, liquid funds and
unlisted debt securities are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in Hong Kong or
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables set out above, and liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

MERREZEEEREE (&)

=EERE
WXBHAR_E—+t&F=A
—t—HRERTESEHRSED
BRMBEE 2 &IE AIAREE
AR REaEERBRARGS
B RMEEERmMSRE-
AEEXENEERRAEES
FEWBEF - AEB KNI G 2 %5
DERENEHNEFE - RZT—+
FZA=Z+—HB RAZEAFF
FT b &) FE W 2 5 ;RIB B #884 %
(ZZE—RF:91%)  WEERF
B R BE AN 3K - 7% 3 & B A i A A0
REBECHEANEBAETZE-

SREERREERE K&E
BEEECAEEEMNEMEE
T2 Fr - DAREOR SR ER BR 2 5 6 e [
BHIRN 2 B8 - b5l AEE R
A BEARBENE SRR
AU E &5 AR B A
SRR RIBEREE LUt
mE ARRIEFRAR AREZ
EERERE RBREE-

RITER RBESMIELTE
BRrFEZEERBRRER
B WA 577 KRB ERFR
BBIERESERFRZRT
X B TS o

BREERE RS ERKE SRR
s RBEEFRFERZ
B = ERFRRITH SR
B AEEAFTEEMNERNH
EREEERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

28. Financial Instruments (continued) 28. €@t T B ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HXBEKMEEBEEZEREE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk TEE LR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group FEBRRBERRE ~5E
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash ERERBTHANETERRIFER
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to ERBESZFEKE - UAEXEE
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects NEBLEREESIWRERS
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors MERPHNTE - BEEREERR
the utilisation of bank borrowings. TEEZERBMR-
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFVAEBETEMBEE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial ZEBTAEAREH - R ITIBE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the AEERAUFEEREENEAE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on ZEEAHZAFRERESRE
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to B FRIE - TamiRITEEITE
pay. Specifically, bank loan with a repayment on demand E MRz o] RE M - BB A BERF IR
clause is included in the time band for earliest repayment ERERBERZBITEESHTTA
regardless of the probability of the bank choosing to xPREHEE -tk RXRBEFE &
exercise its right. The table includes both interest and RAeRERE-FERERIEH
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are M= gk E - RITRESTENK
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from B S B A R 2 MR RS
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period. Ho
Liquidity tables mBEEFK
Carrying
Weighted ~ On demand 3 months Total amount at
average  of less than to 1to2 2t05 Over undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years 5years  cash flows 2017
e-tf
il 3 RERS =f8A - k-3 *TEERE =ZA=t-AH
YRE  SR=MEA E-F k-3 ZIE RENE RELE ZEEE
% HKSOOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUO0  HKSUO0  HKSO0O
FET FET FET FET FET FET TEx
2017 —g-t&
Financial liabilities at g 3=V
amortised cost BHERA
Trade payables EHESER - 1852 3432 - - - 188658 188,658
Other payables EG L ES - 297 - - - - 297 297
Secured bank loans — AERBITER
variable rate 58 125 1430 4,255 5612 16,454 21,458 49,209 46533
186,953 7,687 5,612 16,454 N458 238164 235488

128 Allan International Holdings Limited = f&EFR @A R A 7



e MBREEME

BE_ZT—t+tF=A=+—HIFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

28. Financial Instruments (continued) 28. €@t T B ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HXBEKMEEBEEZEREE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELRERE (&)
Liquidity tables (Continued) HREE 2K (&)
Carrying
Weighted ~ On demand 3 months Total amount at
average o less than to 1t02 2t05 Over  undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years 5 years cash flows 2016
—E-R%
i REXSK =f@A —F k3 ARERE ZA=t-AH
THHE  HSR=EA E-F E-F EhE RENE MERE ZRERE
% HKSDO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSODD KOO MKSOOO  HKSDoo
FAET FAT FATL FAET FET FET FET
2016 3
Financial liabilities at g3~V
amortised cost BHERA
Trade payables EREZER - 197,215 3,502 - - - 200,717 200,717
Other payables Hit R R - 2,585 - - = - 2,585 2,585
Secured bank loans - RERRTER
Variabe rate %8 121 7022 4215 5577 16,417 26,727 50,068 57,205
206,832 7,117 5577 16,417 %727 263270 260507
As at 31 March 2016, bank loan with a repayment on RZEBE—RFE=ZA=+—H &
demand clause is included in the “on demand or less EREBBRANRFERLERET
than 3 months” time band in the above maturity analysis HE BT AR BE R IR 2 Tf%fif%
according to the effective date of the repayment on RZBITERELAMZEA S
demand clause at the end of the reporting period. As A EA HﬁgﬁﬁQ\ A=1EA ]
at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the aggregate ZEKBEHEEAN - R_T—+F=
carrying amount of such bank loan amounted to nil and A=+—HEZ=ZZE—X~E=HA
HK$5,548,000, respectively. =+—H ZERTEXRZER
BED R 6 %A EKS4EST B
7TE o
The amounts included above for variable interest rate )2 BHZENRERREEZ

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I&3RE /st

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_ZT—tF=A=+—HILFE
28. Financial Instruments (continueq) 28. €W T A &)
c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments SEMIAAFETE
This note provides information about how the Group LEF IR AN &R B Nl 25 E B 2 B
determines fair values of various financial assets. BEEMATBEZER -
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and () FEBHHELZERHBEE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair ELFEREESEMEERZ
value on a recurring basis AFEGTE

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique used), as well
as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as at

AVE

Financial assets 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
R-ZB—+tF R-B-—RE

MBEE =A=t+—~H =A=+—*H

Investment funds classified  HK$12,331,000 HK$11,356,000
as available-for-sale

investments

HeRED S 12,331,000/ 7T 11,356,000/ 7T
BAEHERE

Unlisted debt securities Nil HK$3,538,000

classified as available-for-
sale investments

FEMEBESFDHE i3 3,538,000/ 7T
BAEHERE
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DFESER HERM

Level 2
FEZR
Level 2
FEZR

Redemption value
quoted by the relevant
investment funds
with reference to the
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funds
EHEeRENERERTD
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Discounted cash flow
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

28. Financial Instruments (continued) 28. €@t T B ()

C. Fair value measurements of financial instruments ©-
(Continued)

EMITAQTPEFE (&)

Fair value as at

N¥EE
Fair value
Financial assets 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 hierarchy  Valuation technique
R-ZB—+t&F R-B—RE
B%EE ZA=+—H =B=+—H DFEER HERM
Listed debt securities HK$13,227,000 HK$4,675,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
classified as available-for- active market
sale investments
tHEBESD H 13,227,000/ 7T 4,675,000/ 7T E—% RERMIZMREER
RAEHERE
Investment funds classified HK$1,920,000 HK$3,495,000 Level 2 Redemption value
as financial assets quoted by the relevant
designated at FVTPL investment funds
with reference to the
underlying assets (mainly
listed securities and
debt securities issued
by listed entities) of the
funds
HEeRENERBEBIBE 1,920,000 T 3,495,000/ 7T EZR BEHESRENERERT
BAFEFEZ BREESHEBEE (£
G EE ZFmAREITHET

BHREBES)

(i) FEHLTERELZME
BN FHEHTENIBEEE
RUBEEZAFE
EERR BHEKNAREGR
B HRERANZ BB TEE
N AEZ REEEE
FERE-

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis
The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate

=
=
/D\

their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—tH&=A=1+—HILFE

29. Share Option Scheme 29. iERR fEST 2

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 8 August 2012 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors of the Company and eligible
employees, the directors and employees of the Company
may, at the discretion of the directors of the Company, be
granted options (the “Options”) to subscribe for shares in the
Company (the “Shares”) at a price determined by its directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
and the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up
not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option. An option is exercisable on the date when the offer for
the grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.

No options have been granted during the year under the
Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

30. Related Party Disclosures

(@)

Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to its

related parties are as follows:

Immediate holding company
Allan Investment Company Limited

Fellow subsidiaries
Income Village Limited
Fair Pacific Limited

BEEZRAF
DRIEBARAA]

CEN ) NG
ffEEABR AR
BERR AR

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases with immediate holding

company, fellow subsidiaries and a director of the

Company which are included in note 31 and fall due as

follows:

Immediate holding company
Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Fellow subsidiaries
Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

HEEZRAF
—FRA

E_FEERFA

CEN ) NG
—FR

E_FEERFN

e MBREEME

BE_ZT—t+tF=A=+—HIFE

0. EERAEAIRG 2HKE

(@ AEEENZKENEERAXTT

SIEREANTL:

2017
—2-t#%
HK$’000
FAT

900

204
984

2016
—E—RF
HK$ 000
FET

900

204
984

RBEFEGERK  AEBEE
BRER AR FRKE AR KA
AAEE RO EERE
(B BEEMTE3T) MEXNRE
RERNHEEAENT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
900 900

1,800 -
2,700 900
1,188 1,188

408 1,968

1,596 3,156
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

30. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

e MR RS E M

HE— T t+t&=A=+—HItFE

0. EERAEAIRG 2HKE

(#&)
(@) Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to its @ AEEENKZEMESFAXTT
related parties are as follows: (Continued) TIEEEAL: (&)
Certain directors of the Company have controls in Allan HOARESENEHREEEBRA
Investment Company Limited, Income Village Limited and A REARA A REESRA A
Fair Pacific Limited. BiEHIE-
(b)  The remuneration of key management personnel, being b) REAZTEEBABZHME A

the directors of the Company, during the year was as
follows:

BEEWMT:

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Short-term employee benefits REETREF 15,075 13,947
Post employment benefits RIRAE 781 712
15,856 14,659

The remuneration of directors of the Company is
recommended by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals, market trends
and conditions with a view to retain and motivate
executives.

31.Operating Leases

RRRIERZME TR ER R
B m58gRER BFHEE
SRREFR BRBEEREEHTT
BAEBREBEREENS -

3. EEHE

The Group as lessee AEBEHAEA
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments paid during AEEFREERELAME
the year under operating leases in =IEEE R K
respect of rented premises 2,104 2,108
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_ZT—+tF=A=+—HILFE
31.Operating Leases (continued) N.EEHE @
The Group as lessee (Continued) AREBEERAEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RBEFRELERE  NEE 2 A
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable ZEHEMBE XN REFREERNHEE
operating leases which fall due as follows: ZEENT
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Within one year —F A 2,098 2,104
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEREN 2,208 1,979
4,306 4,083
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for rented LEHENFIELEYEREN 2HE -
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term ranging HEFHE—FE=F(_T—RF:—
from one to three years (2016: one to three years) and rentals FE=F)HRHEHEREEHRRNEEE
are fixed throughout the lease period. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

31. Operating Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$4,517,000 (2016: HK$5,601,000). The property held has
committed tenants for the next three years (2016: three years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

e MR RS E M

HE

31.

“EtF=A=T—HIFEE

EEHEE )

REBESHBAA
FAMEEHSBARIBIBTFAET (=
T—NF 560B1FETT) HAHYE
HEHEPMEARARK=FHEYH (ZF—X
F=%F)o

RBEFEERK AEEEBES 5
TIARRFEEERTLAA

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 3,353 4,560
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FERERAFNAN 2,343 4,073
5,696 8,633
32. Capital Commitments 32. EAREYE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BEL 2 BARERE
provided in the consolidated financial B RRERE M BREEA
statements in respect of; REFSRE :
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEWE HWELZE
equipment 765 838
— construction of a factory plant — BRI MRE 20,321 =
21,086 838
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

33. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong patrticipates in both a
defined contribution scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from employees
of 5% of their salaries. The employers will contribute based on
the monthly salaries of employees according to the following
schedule:

e MBREEME

HE—T—

33.

TtHFE=A=+—"HILFE

R ARfE R 5T E

FENE AR 2 ERIE TR
AR B R ARG BB R RDI ([RTR
SHEDKER_ZTTTF T AKX
MR SR B AT E RG] R B ERTR
wat @ (BB - ZFFEE
ERAKEEERODRTE AHEE
HEREAMEFRZBIESRSE -

2mrtEEEIZEE  FARKAA
B Z5% B E M ARE AT EHIRETE
BAREEHRZHRE:

Rate of
Number of completed years of service contribution
5T X AR 7% & HA EEES
Not more than 5 years DPREAEF 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZRAFERILZNI10F 7.5%
More than 10 years ZH+ 10%

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more, or
at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating in
the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively. Where
an employee leaves the employment prior to becoming
fully entitled to the employer’s contributions, the excess
contributions are forfeited and the employer may utilise the
forfeited contributions to reduce its future contributions. At 31
March 2016 and 2017, the Group had no material unutilised
forfeited contributions in the ORSO Scheme which may be
used to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

S2mAEEFERTFEZRE A2
FEMBARSREEHRZHFBELA
HRAE - E2MFBRIEIF &S
# Z B30%ZE0%(E = 2 5N EE - s (&
BB RER 2 B0 = KA BB
A% B EFGE T2 W MEE R ER AT
RNz BERFNIR B IR RN 2 R - R =
E—AE_T—+tF=HA=+—8"
REEDRA B AL U AT EF0 R B
BEMHETER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B I&3RE /st

For the year ended 31 March 2017  E—E—tF=A=1+—HLFE

33. RIKBERIFTEl =)

33. Retirement Benefits Schemes

(Continueqd)

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment
in Hong Kong. The Group contributes at the lower of 5% of
relevant payroll costs monthly to the MPF Scheme, subject
to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per month for each
employee, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for the
scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of the
average salary as advised by the relevant authority in the PRC.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme. The subsidiaries operating in the PRC also
contributed to a local municipal government retirement scheme
for all qualified employees in the PRC. The employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
schemes in the PRC is to make the retired contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

4. AXRF2EEMBAE

KR-FE-—tER-F—AF=A
=t—A ARz RHBAAHE

34. Particulars Of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017
and 2016, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Company, are as follows: wm

Place of

incorporation Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary or registration/operations  capital or registered capital Principal activities
HEARER EMRIBEL EEHY ERTRERIREIZMER TEER
Allan Electric Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and 50,000 Investment holding
TREXEEFRAF BB non-voting deferred shares REER

Allan International Limited *

Allan Mould Manufacturing Limited

British Virgin Islands/
‘Hong Kong
KBRS/ BR

Hong Kong/PRC

1007 & &% 5250,0008%
BRFERLTRN

55,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
55,000 SR EE1E T2 LRk

100 ordinary shares

Investment holding

BEER

Manufacturing of plastic

G TREEERAF B/ HE 1008 & AR injection moulds
EEBBFEEA
Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 3,005 ordinary shares Property holding and trading
THREBBERAA B 3,005 & i ik of household electrical
appliances
RFENEREEREES
Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 270,000 ordinary shares Inactive
ShRnARRERAAF &t 270,000f% & ik EEXH
SRIENE (BN ERAF PRC* Registered capital of USD62,600,000 Manufacturing of household
H 1 & 74862,600,000% 75 electrical appliances and
plastic parts
EEREERR
BRITH
KET% (BB ERAR PRC* Registered capital of HK$75,000,000 Manufacturing of household
H 1 & 475,000,000 7T electrical appliances and
plastic parts
EEREER R
BREH
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(Continueqd)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER
Artreal Manufactory Limited

BEXTXARAA

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited

FREXZERR AT

Electrical Investments Limited

Ever Sources Investment Limited

EEREARAA

Global Express (HK) Limited
it (B8)ERAR

Good Eagle Investment Limited

EEREFRAF

Great Yield Limited
RBERAH

FEE TEMR (M) BRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

34. Particulars Of Principal Subsidiaries

Place of
incorporation

or registration/operations
EMRIRERL EEE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
&t

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EBRRAHE/ER

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
&t

PRC*
P E

PRC*
P E
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e IR E

& et

HE T t+t&=HA=+—HItFE

(%)

Issued and fully paid share
capital or registered capital
ERTREZRAAZMER

2 ordinary shares

2

2 ordinary shares
2B BBR

1 ordinary share of USD1
IREBEIRTZ SRR

100 ordinary shares
1008 & iR

2 ordinary shares
2B EBR

1 ordinary share
1REBR
1 ordinary share

1REER

Registered capital of HK$100,000,000
#fft & %100,000,0007% 7T

Registered capital of USD3,500,000
7 it & 43,500,000 7¢

4. ARF2EEMBAE

Principal activities

FEEHR

Trading of household
electrical appliances
BHREER

Trading of household
electrical appliances
KEREER

[nactive

TEXE

Inactive

E

Inactive

ERER

[nvestment holding

BEER

Trading of household
electrical appliances
EHFES %

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances and
plastic parts

EERESEREBEH

Manufacturing and trading
of household electrical
appliances and plastic

parts
EEREHFEEER
BREH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B FE R & = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—t&F=HA=+—HItFE

34.Particulars Of Principal Subsidiaries 34. XA ZEEMBE QT

(Continued) (#&)
Place of
incorporation Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary or registration/operations  capital or registered capital Principal activities
- NGRS EMRIREL EEHE ERTRERIREIZIMER TERH
Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Trading of household
SREELEERAA EB 1008% & i & electrical appliances
BHREER
New Prestige Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Property investment
BA 1RE B g LYES
Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic & Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and 54,000 Property holding
Metalwares Factory Limited BB non-voting deferred shares BEME
5k (RR)EBAEBERAA 100RR % 3 A [254,0008% 1z EHEE T
ig)
Progress Associates Limited * British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Investment in securities
Hong Kong 1RAEEIET ERR BHRE
EBRAEE /AR
Total Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 ordinary shares of USD1 each [nvestment holding
Hong Kong RAEEIE T2 Edk REER
KBRS/ BR
Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Inactive
EREFHUEFRLA EA 100MR & & HELHK
Well Sincere Investment Limited * Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Investment holding
BABRERB AR G 2% s R REER
2 Direct subsidiaries * BEEWNBAA
# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises # 2EINHBEDSE
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the RELR B R R EZITERERE
end of the year. Fo
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_T—tF=A=+—HILFE
35.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 35. AR B MR RKRKREE
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2017 2016
—¥-—tF —TAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I RBEE
Property and equipment EINET ] 1,435 1,603
Interests in subsidiaries BB A mlkE 78,455 78,455
Available-for-sales investments A HERE 8,548 =
Deferred tax asset RAEFLIEE B 41 19
Club debenture 2MES 10,705 11,395
99,184 91,472
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables H th e U BR 7k 1,798 1,842
Amounts due from subsidiaries J7E L Bt /8 A B R IE 3,358 =
Tax recoverable A] BX [ %4 I8 94 2,618
Short-term deposits 2 HAE K 207,658 303,667
Bank balances and cash SRITEBRERE 60,590 51,646
273,498 359,773
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Other payables and accruals EL A FE A 5RIB R B R AT 26,436 30,955
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR EENGIE O] 12,249 74,931
38,685 105,886
NET CURRENT ASSETS BERBEE 234,813 253,887
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 333,997 345,359
NET ASSETS EEFE 333,997 345,359
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAXR#E
Share capital f& 7 33,543 33,543
Reserves B 300,454 311,816
333,997 345,359
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

e MBREEME

HE-T LE=A=t-AILEE

35. 21X B B #55iR L Rk K
(%)

CO MPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves NEEEEE
Capital  Investment
Share  Redemption  contributed  revaluation Dividend Retained

premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total

R EE BERE RAMABR REBRRE REFE REER ot

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 April 2015 RZZ-1F 100,884 793 28,230 - 25,157 63,901 227,965

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEEF R 2 HRALE - - - - - 114,040 114,040

Dividend proposed for 2016 BEE-F-FZRE - - - - 18,449 (18,449) -

Special dividends proposed for 2016 BEE-Z-EzRAIRE - - - - 93,921 (93,921) =

Dividends recognised as distribution REDEZBE - - - - (25,157) (5,032) (30,189)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZE-AE=A=1-Ak

—E-EMA-B 109,884 793 28,230 - 112,370 60,539 311,816

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEERFI R 2ERALE - - - - - 108,178 108,178
Net loss on revaluation of available-for-sale AHHEREZ ERERFE

investments = = = (461) = = (461)

Dividends proposed for 2017 BEE-T-tFZRE - - - - 35,220 (35,220) =

Dividends recognised as distribution REDEZBE - - - - (112,370) (6,709) (119,079)

At 31 March 2017 RZE—+E=A=+-H 109,884 793 28,230 (461) 35,220 126,788 300,454
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Financial Summary

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the five years ended 31 March 2017.

Revenue

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit for the year

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

3

BR % A A
A

AREE i

BERE
BEAE

BEFE

B HE

TRAXEEBE_Z—+tF=A=+—

BUEhEFEZREE BERBERE-

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+-HLEFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
28—+t —T-R¥ _—ET-hFf CT-NWmE _—T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
1,325,082 1,565,325 1,946,003 2,015,405 2,356,362
84,225 143,012 85,933 105,319 133,130
(11,278) (7,356) (15,453) (21,862) (24,304)
72,947 135,656 70,480 83,457 108,826

At 31 March

R=BA=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

“BE—4+F —EFE-RF —E-HF —T—NHF ET—=

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FHET
1,608,184 1,694,186 1,643,831 1,726,787 1,755,339
489,993 520,352 568,376 679,621 748,811
1,118,191 1,173,834 1,075,455 1,047,166 1,006,528
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